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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning. I

          3  am Councilman Stanley Michels, the Chair of the

          4  Committee on Environmental Protection. I welcome you

          5  to this hearing.

          6                 We have two items on today's agenda

          7  that concern the preservation of lands that are

          8  vital to the protection of the City's water supply.

          9                 The first item is a vote on proposed

         10  Resolution 764-A, which I sponsored along with

         11  Speaker Vallone. Proposed Resolution 764-A is an

         12  amended version of the resolution that was sent out

         13  in your invitation to this hearing. We have copies

         14  of this amended resolution available to anyone who

         15  wishes one.

         16                 Proposed Resolution 764-A calls upon

         17  the New York District of the United States Army

         18  Corps of Engineers to prohibit the use of nationwide

         19  permits in the New York City watershed.

         20                 Many of you attended the Committee's

         21  hearing on this subject two months ago, on April

         22  15th. The Committee heard extensive testimony on

         23  this issue at the April 15th hearing. Having already

         24  heard testimony on this matter, the Committee does

         25  not intend to revisit the matter in detail today.
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          2                 However, if any witness has testimony

          3  that covers some new ground on this issue, he or she

          4  is welcome to present testimony on the resolution.

          5                 The next item on the agenda is

          6  oversight of the City's land acquisition program

          7  that is being conducted pursuant to the watershed

          8  memorandum of agreement, which we all refer to as

          9  the MOA, the MOA, right?

         10                 The acquisition of critical lands in

         11  the City's watershed is one of the most critical

         12  aspects of the City's efforts to maintain the purity

         13  of our water supply in perpetuity and to avoid

         14  filtration of our Catskill Delaware Water System.

         15                 You are all aware, if we do not

         16  continue to have this filtration avoidance, we may

         17  have to put up a filtration plant that will cost us

         18  upwards of $7 million or $8 million, and that

         19  doesn't include the cost of maintaining it each

         20  year, it probably runs into hundreds of millions of

         21  dollars, $500 million a year, and the consequences

         22  of that would be on the water and sewer bills of the

         23  people of the City, might easily double those water

         24  bills.

         25                 We are fortunate to have the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Commissioner of the Department of Environmental

          3  Protection Joe Miele with us today to inform us of

          4  the City's progress on this vital initiative. Vital

          5  not only to the water supply but vital to the very

          6  existence of our City itself.

          7                 This Committee looks forward to

          8  hearing this testimony and let me identify the

          9  members of the Committee that are here.

         10                 Sitting in front of us is the Whip of

         11  the City Council, Victor Robles, from Brooklyn. To

         12  my right we have Madeline Provenzano, from the

         13  greater borough of the Bronx, and also Adolpho

         14  Carrion, also from the great Borough of the Bronx,

         15  and from time to time we will be joined by other

         16  members of the Committee.

         17                 I will have to leave shortly to go

         18  down to a press conference, and Mr. Robles will take

         19  over for me during the interim.

         20                 Commissioner, welcome. We always look

         21  forward to your statement, and always look forward

         22  to your being in front of this Committee, because we

         23  learn so much from you.

         24                 We, as you know, have questions for

         25  you, but we are very anxious to hear from you. I
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          2  know you have a prepared statement, to learn of the

          3  progress we are making, and I know it is progress,

          4  in protecting our watershed area and that means

          5  protecting the water supply of the City of New York.

          6                 Thank you, sir.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Thank you.

          8                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and

          9  members. I am Joel A. Miele, Sr., Professional

         10  Engineer, the Commissioner of the Department of

         11  Environmental Protection and with me are the First

         12  Deputy Commissioner Diana Chapin, on my right, and

         13  Charles Sturcken, my Chief of Staff, and Special

         14  Counsel on my left.

         15                 Thank you for giving me the

         16  opportunity to speak this morning on the City's land

         17  acquisition program.

         18                 Before I delve into that subject,

         19  however, I want to address the other matter on

         20  today's agenda, Resolution No. 764. My remarks on

         21  Resolution 764 will be brief, since they address the

         22  subject of the Army Corps of Engineers' Wetlands

         23  Permitting Program at length in my testimony before

         24  this Committee on April 15, 1999.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I assume the
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          2  same remarks will pertain to 764 today as well?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Resolution 764 is

          6  a statement in support of an Army Corps of Engineers

          7  proposal to require individual wetland permits for

          8  any disturbance of a wetlands parcel greater than

          9  one-third of an acre now I understand modified to

         10  zero size in acres in the New York City watershed.

         11                 As I stated in testimony last April,

         12  I believe that if we are given advanced notice of

         13  Army Corps permit applications and permit issuances,

         14  we can, using our current authority, monitor

         15  compliance carefully. When this is coupled with our

         16  existing watershed program, protection programs, in

         17  particular watershed regulations, land acquisition

         18  and additional wetlands mapping, we believe we can

         19  adequately safeguard critical wetlands areas in the

         20  watershed.

         21                 As I also stated in testimony last

         22  April, we are opposed to any weakening of

         23  protections in the existing Army Corps Wetlands

         24  Program.

         25                 In particular, we oppose any
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          2  expansion of the use of general permits. Meaning,

          3  ones not requiring individual review in areas below

          4  the head waters of streams where they are not now

          5  allowed.

          6                 We have attended several meetings

          7  with the other parties to the memorandum of

          8  agreement, in an effort to see if the Army Corps

          9  program can be upgraded in a manner that satisfies

         10  our concerns but does not impose unnecessary burdens

         11  on watershed residents and businesses.

         12                 A number of options were presented at

         13  those meetings and all of the parties are currently

         14  studying the ramifications of each of those.

         15                 We are also engaged in a mapping

         16  exercise to determine more precisely where wetlands

         17  are located in relation to the head waters of

         18  streams and water courses.

         19                 Such a database will help us make

         20  intelligent decisions on the various options that

         21  have been put forward.

         22                 In light of the ongoing discussions,

         23  we believe that resolution 764 is premature and does

         24  not contribute to a resolution of this issue on a

         25  consensual basis among the various parties.
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          2                 The second item on today's agenda is

          3  an oversight of the City's land acquisition program.

          4  I am particularly pleased to have the opportunity to

          5  address land acquisition this morning, because this

          6  program has been such an unqualified success.

          7                 As I have previously testified to the

          8  Committee most recently in April, in the first two

          9  years of the program the City exceeded the goals for

         10  property solicitation that are established in the

         11  MOA.

         12                 In large measure, the reason for that

         13  is that the City is fortunate to have some

         14  particularly capable and devoted public servants

         15  working on the Land Acquisition Program.

         16                 I would like to interrupt my prepared

         17  remarks for a few minutes so that I may introduce a

         18  few of them.

         19                 Deputy Commissioner Bill Stasiuk.

         20  Bill, why don't you just stand up. Supervises,

         21  amongst others, the Office of Watershed Lands and

         22  Community Planning, which is headed by Ira Stern.

         23  Dave Tobias is the Director of the Land Acquisition

         24  and Stewardship Program.

         25                 To protect its drinking water
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          2  reservoirs, and streams and rivers feeding into

          3  them, the City has always owned some part of the

          4  nearly 2,000 square mile watershed.

          5                 Until the 1997 MOA, the City owned

          6  only 6.4 percent of its watershed and most of that,

          7  approximately two-thirds represented by the

          8  reservoirs themselves. There had been no systemic

          9  expansion of the City's inventory of watershed land

         10  since the completion of the Delaware system in 1965.

         11                 Although the City attempted to

         12  purchase additional lands in the early 1990s, its

         13  efforts were stymied by the New York State

         14  Department of Environmental Conservation, which

         15  insisted that a state permit was necessary, a permit

         16  that upstate representatives opposed, and DEC

         17  refused to give, until an overall on watershed

         18  protection was reached and the MOA was in place.

         19                 The relatively small amount of

         20  watershed property owned by the City makes it

         21  unusual among unfiltered surface water suppliers.

         22  Along with high quality sources, one of the

         23  principle reasons why other surface water supplies

         24  have remained unfiltered is that they own much of

         25  the land draining into their reservoirs. They can
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          2  therefore assure that the property will not be used

          3  in ways that jeopardize the quality.

          4                 Ownership or control of watershed

          5  property is considered so crucial to long-term water

          6  quality, that EPA wrote it into the 1989 surface

          7  water treatment rule as one of the cornerstones of a

          8  successful filtration avoidance program.

          9                 Although the City's raw water,

         10  especially from Catskill Delaware basins west of the

         11  Hudson is a remarkably high quality, EPA argued that

         12  the City could not maintain this exceptional quality

         13  over the long term without a significant commitment

         14  to increased ownership of watershed lands, as well

         15  as other watershed protection measures.

         16                 As part of the MOA, DEC finally

         17  issued a permit to the City establishing, along with

         18  the MOA, the terms and conditions of a new City

         19  watershed land acquisition program. It is important

         20  to stress that the permit was issued to the City

         21  only after consensus was reached on a whole host of

         22  issues both related to and unrelated to land

         23  acquisition.

         24                 The MOA not only specifies the

         25  overall goals of the land acquisition program, it
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          2  establishes the type of properties that are deemed

          3  eligible for acquisition.

          4                 It further prescribes the process for

          5  targeting properties for acquisition, the manner of

          6  soliciting the owners, how properties are appraised

          7  and how local communities are to be notified the

          8  City is looking for properties in these communities.

          9                 All of these features of the Land

         10  Acquisition Program were topics of heated discussion

         11  of heated during the MOA negotiations. The dynamic

         12  among the parties was as intense, as you might

         13  imagine.

         14                 On the one hand, upstate

         15  representatives were and are very interested in

         16  making sure the City does not deprive upstate

         17  communities of valuable, underdeveloped property

         18  without appropriate notice or through the use of its

         19  powers of condemnation.

         20                 In addition, there was and remains a

         21  concern that the City will take advantage of

         22  individual property owners.

         23                 Finally, there was a strong interest

         24  in how the City would use newly acquired lands.

         25                 On the other hand, EPA was less
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          2  concerned about local land uses and more concerned

          3  that the City commit to a firm schedule of actions

          4  it would take in furtherance of land acquisition.

          5                 Like many other elements of the

          6  City's watershed protection program, the land

          7  acquisition program is being implemented pursuant to

          8  a process specific agreement, every step of which

          9  was the subject of a great deal of vigorous debate.

         10                 I commend those who represented the

         11  City and who forcefully advocated for the successful

         12  program we have today, especially Mark Hoffer, DEP's

         13  General Counsel.

         14                 Having described the context in which

         15  this program was created, the remainder of my

         16  statement is devoted to the following:

         17                 Overall goals of the program, the

         18  acquisition process itself, the priorities for

         19  acquisition, properties excluded from acquisition,

         20  the role of community review, the opportunities for

         21  recreational use, and lastly, the use of easements

         22  to supplement direct fee acquisition.

         23                 Under the terms of the MOA the City

         24  must commit a minimum of $250 million for land

         25  acquisition and solicit owners of 355,050 acres of
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          2  eligible land in the Catskill Delaware watershed

          3  which is approximately 30 percent of the total

          4  watershed area.

          5                 This does not mean that the City must

          6  actually acquire this much land, it simply means we

          7  must contact property owners within the watershed to

          8  meet certain solicitation milestones stipulated in

          9  the MOA and the filtration avoidance determination.

         10                 With certain limited exceptions we

         11  must also close on all properties where eligibility

         12  criteria satisfied and the owner accepts the City's

         13  offer.

         14                 A requirement that the City purchase

         15  a minimum number of acres would be difficult to

         16  fulfill, in light of the City's agreement not to use

         17  its powers of condemnation under the MOA land

         18  acquisition program and to purchase only from

         19  willing sellers.

         20                 For this reason, the program's goal

         21  as set out in the MOA is expressed in terms of acres

         22  solicited.

         23                 However, the real goal is obviously

         24  to purchase fee title or conservation easements so

         25  we can assure that sensitive parcels remain
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          2  undeveloped in perpetuity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is very

          4  important. People will say, well, how many acres?

          5  Have you met the goal? And the fact of the matter is

          6  there is no goal to purchase the specific number of

          7  acres --

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: --  And the

         10  solicitation isn't a substitute, but people should

         11  understand that.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: On January 20th,

         13  1998, we met the FAD's Year 1 solicitation goal of

         14  56,609 acres. On January 20th, 1999, we met the Year

         15  2 solicitation goal of 51,266 acres. To date this

         16  year we have solicited approximately 10,000 acres of

         17  the Year 3 goal of 42,733 acres which we fully

         18  expect to meet.

         19                 We recently finished identifying

         20  parcels, the owners of which we will be soon

         21  soliciting as part of the Year 3 target. Letters

         22  will go out shortly, and as I said, the Year 3

         23  milestone will not be a problem.

         24                 Of those amounts, we have actually

         25  acquired 6,780 acres, 2,203 acres east of the Hudson
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          2  River and 4,577 acres west of the Hudson.

          3                 In addition, we have under contract

          4  an additional 8,111 acres.

          5                 The total cost of acres purchased or

          6  under contract, is $39.5 million. The actual cost of

          7  each acre varies widely, depending mostly on

          8  location, highest and best use and size of the

          9  parcel.

         10                 The acres west of the Hudson

         11  generally cost less, and obviously the acres east of

         12  the Hudson generally cost more.

         13                 I have a series maps that show in

         14  pink our land purchases in each of the three

         15  watersheds. The important thing that these maps show

         16  is the location of acquired parcels.

         17                 The land acquisition program may be

         18  measured by the number of acres solicited or

         19  acquired, but in terms of watershed protection, it

         20  is a location and ecosystem function of parcels

         21  acquired that really matters.

         22                 And if you take a look up on the top

         23  of this you can see the areas that we have looked at

         24  for prioritization and where in fact in pink we

         25  actually have already acquired property.
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          2                 This is obviously the Catskill

          3  Delaware and you can see again the area that we have

          4  taken title to land. Some of these, considering that

          5  we are talking about 2000 square miles you can see

          6  are significant -- I am sorry, the Catskill

          7  watershed, you can obviously see that there are

          8  significant parcels involved in it.

          9                 This is the Delaware and we have some

         10  parcels that we picked up, certainly the ones that

         11  we are really concerned about in these areas here,

         12  and you will see from the prioritization maps, one

         13  of the points that needs to be made is if there is a

         14  significant amount of that land that is not

         15  privately owned, that a state owned already, if I

         16  remember correctly it is about 26 percent

         17  state-owned, and it is the green owned land, the

         18  property shown in green.

         19                 So, there is governmental control

         20  over a substantial area, particularly in the areas

         21  that we are concerned about, which are in the areas

         22  that are critical to keeping the quality of the

         23  water.

         24                 Put up that other slide.

         25                 This you can see again in green there
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          2  is an enormous quantity of state-owned property that

          3  is involved in this, particularly in areas that we

          4  are interested in. A little bit less in this area

          5  here, but obviously for reasons, most of this is

          6  parks, not so much state forest land and what have

          7  you.

          8                 Okay, as I have stated earlier, the

          9  land acquisition program is purely voluntary.

         10  Acquisitions are entirely on a willing seller,

         11  willing buyer basis. No lands will be acquired under

         12  this program through use of our powers of eminent

         13  domain. The basic feature of the program was of

         14  overarching concern to the upstate parties to the

         15  MOA.

         16                 Beyond that, the process proscribed

         17  for solicitation, appraisal and purchase is designed

         18  to ensure that the City is able to aggressively

         19  pursue land acquisition without compromising the

         20  right of land owners to get a fair price for their

         21  property.

         22                 The process begins with either a

         23  letter solicitation from the City, or by a contact

         24  initiated by the individual land owner.

         25                 If a property owner solicited
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          2  indicates interest, we schedule a site visit. If

          3  after the site visit we determine that the property

          4  is eligible for purchase, and desired by the City,

          5  as determined by criteria I will discuss shortly, an

          6  independent appraisal is ordered. The appraisers are

          7  New York State certified firms under contract to the

          8  City. They appraise vacant lands at full fair market

          9  value. The appraisers must consider information

         10  contained in second appraisals made at the owner or

         11  a third party's expense, provided the appraisal was

         12  completed no earlier than one year prior to the date

         13  of the City's appraisal or six months after the

         14  owners receipt of the City's appraisal.

         15                 The City's offer is based on the

         16  appraised value. If the offer is accepted, the owner

         17  and the City enter into as 18-month contract. The

         18  City has closed on the majority of projects within

         19  about 14 months.

         20                 Within eight weeks of signing a

         21  contract a three percent downpayment is made, the

         22  remainder is paid at closing.

         23                 In order to maximize the

         24  effectiveness of the acquisition program, and to

         25  find the areas that are eligible for acquisition
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          2  pursuant to the MOA, DEP staff developed the

          3  following five classifications: This set of

          4  classifications and their place in the hiring

          5  priorities was made part of the MOA.

          6                 I have maps with me that show each of

          7  the following priorities. Priority area 1A is

          8  properties located in sub-basins within a 60-day

          9  travel time to the New York City distribution system

         10  and located near reservoir intakes.

         11                 The priority 1As are in the dark

         12  purple, you can see them here, you can see an area

         13  there, there is an area there, there is an area

         14  there and I think -- again the purple, you can see

         15  the purple, and you can see the purple down there.

         16  Again, those are determined by environmental

         17  considerations, those that would have the maximum

         18  impact obviously on the quality of water.

         19                 Priority area 1B is the balance of

         20  land located in sub-basins that are within the

         21  60-day travel time to the New York City system and

         22  those are 1B. Yes, the red color. That is pretty

         23  obvious. There is an enormous amount of property in

         24  that area, and you will notice its proximity to the

         25  water itself, that is not a surprise. The same thing
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          2  occurs over here, as you can see.

          3                 Priority area 2, lands located within

          4  sub-basins of terminal reservoir basins that are not

          5  included in priority areas 1A or 1B. Terminal

          6  reservoirs are those reservoirs that may function as

          7  the last stop for water before it is conveyed to the

          8  New York City distribution system, essentially

          9  Ashokan and Roundout Reservoirs (phonetic). They are

         10  a gold color. There, there, there is none on the

         11  east of Hudson, in fact you can see the colors on

         12  the west of Hudson.

         13                 Priority three areas are lands

         14  located within sub-basins that have been identified

         15  with water quality problems, and finally the

         16  priority area 4 is the balance of land in the west

         17  of the Hudson Watershed. That obviously would be our

         18  lowest priority.

         19                 Furthermore, in order to be eligible

         20  of acquisition, parcels must contain the following

         21  natural features criteria. Parcels and priority at

         22  1A must be at least one acre in size. Parcels in

         23  priority area 1B must be at least five acres in

         24  size. Parcels in priority areas 2, 3 and 4 must be

         25  at least ten acres in size and must satisfy one of
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          2  the following conditions.

          3                 The parcel must be at least partially

          4  located within 1,000 feet of one of our reservoirs.

          5  The parcel must be at least partially located in the

          6  100-year flood plane. The parcel must be at least

          7  partially located within 300 feet of a water course

          8  defined in the watershed regulations. The parcel

          9  must contain in whole or part a federal jurisdiction

         10  wetland greater than five acres or a DEC map

         11  wetland. And finally, the parcel must contain ground

         12  slopes of greater than 15 percent.

         13                 In addition, with certain limited

         14  exceptions the City may only acquire vacant parcels,

         15  that is properties with no structures, other than

         16  uninhabitable dwellings or accessory structures.

         17                 If a parcel to be bought has a

         18  habitable dwelling on it, the parcel must be

         19  subdivided so the City takes title only to the

         20  portion of property without the habitable dwelling.

         21                 If the City acquires a parcel that

         22  contains structures other than an unhabitable

         23  dwelling, the local government may, during the local

         24  consultation process, direct the City to demolish

         25  the structure or structures within one year of
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          2  taking title.

          3                 While the acquisition of lands in the

          4  watershed is essential to protecting water quality,

          5  it is also essential to the upstate communities that

          6  our watershed protection program allow reasonable

          7  opportunity for growth, especially in and around

          8  existing population centers.

          9                 Accordingly, the MOA stipulates that

         10  towns and villages in the west of Hudson Watershed

         11  may designate certain parcels of land to be excluded

         12  from the acquisition program. These exemptions are

         13  not automatic, detailed maps of exempted areas were

         14  completed and submitted to the DEP by municipalities

         15  within 100 days of the effective date of the

         16  agreement. These exemptions may, however, be

         17  revisited after five years.

         18                 It should be noted that land has been

         19  exempted from the City's acquisition program that

         20  cannot be acquired in fee by the City, even if a

         21  prospective seller is willing, although the City may

         22  purchase conservation easements on such property.

         23                 Amongst the occlusions from the land

         24  acquisition program, permitted by upstate towns and

         25  villages are properties that meet the following
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          2  conditions and limitations. Each town was permitted

          3  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can I just

          5  interrupt you for a second, because I don't want

          6  that point to be lost. Even though there are certain

          7  areas which are excluded from purchase and which we

          8  cannot and we will not exercise or eminent domain,

          9  at the same time we can purchase easements on those

         10  properties?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's correct,

         12  environmental easements.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Environmental

         14  easements or conservation easements, is that the

         15  same?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Six to one, half

         17  a dozen to the other.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that means

         19  that we get the same usage out of them --

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We get the same

         21  protection out of them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is nothing

         23  that goes on that property that will pollute the

         24  water.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Right. And
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          2  nothing additional will be developed on the property

          3  once we have the easement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that is

          5  agreeable and that is part of the MOA.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Absolutely.

          7                 Additionally we tend to be able to

          8  get easements at a lesser price than fee and we

          9  additionally only pay a proportionate share of the

         10  real estate taxes --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I was about to

         12  mention that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Which is not also

         14  a bad thing to consider.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Those people

         16  don't understand that we pay real estate taxes on

         17  that property.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We pay full value

         19  real estate taxes on every parcel of land we take.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And pay less on

         21  the easements?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's correct,

         23  because they have a lesser value. Not for any other

         24  reason, because the owner still has the actual use

         25  of the property.
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          2                 We currently are paying in excess of

          3  $50 million a year in real estate taxes upstate.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even though we

          5  are residents in New York. Even though we are not

          6  commuters.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, I would

          8  like to consider us residents of New York State and

          9  we are partners with the folks who live north of the

         10  City in protecting this property and working

         11  together to make sure it stays as pristine as we

         12  possibly could make it and to be improving it to the

         13  maximum extent we can without basically harming

         14  badly our partners in the process.

         15                 Let me go on with the conditions and

         16  limitations. Each town was permitted to designate up

         17  to 50 acres in priority areas 1B, 2, 3 or 4 as a

         18  commercial or industrial area to be exempt from

         19  acquisition. That is 50 acres, each town.

         20                 Towns could designate parcels which

         21  are located within a quarter of a mile of a village,

         22  abutting defined road corridors to be excluded from

         23  acquisition. A town could designate certain defined

         24  hamlet areas as exempt from fee acquisition. Again,

         25  fee acquisition, a village could designate all land
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          2  within the village as exempt from fee acquisition

          3  and we still could take environmental easements.

          4                 Before beginning to solicit

          5  acquisitions in a certain town or village, the City

          6  has agreed in the MOA to notify the chief elected

          7  official of that town or village.

          8                 At the municipality's request, the

          9  City will also make a presentation describing the

         10  solicitation process and the estimated acreage that

         11  the City expects to acquire.

         12                 After the City enters into an option

         13  or a contract to purchase, but before a closing can

         14  occur, the City must first submit the parcels under

         15  consideration for acquisition to the appropriate

         16  town or village for its review.

         17                 The municipality will then have 120

         18  days in which to review and assess the information

         19  concerning the properties, to conduct public

         20  hearings, if desired, and submit comments to the

         21  City.

         22                 Typically the comments or concerns

         23  for such matters as proposed recreational uses on

         24  the property, the natural features criteria that

         25  were identified as being present, the use of
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          2  signage, fencing, et cetera. The City will then

          3  respond to any comments received within 30 days.

          4                 After responding to the local

          5  government's comments, the City may then proceed

          6  immediately with acquisition.

          7                 If during this process disputes arise

          8  over whether a particular parcel meets the natural

          9  features criteria, or whether a structure is an

         10  uninhabitable dwelling or an accessory structure,

         11  the dispute will be submitted to and resolved by the

         12  DEC, the Department of Environmental Conservation,

         13  State of New York, within 30 days.

         14                 Historically, our agency has been

         15  averse to most types of recreation on most of its

         16  watershed lands. There were always some exceptions.

         17  For example, fishing and boating for the purpose of

         18  fishing weer permitted on reservoirs, except for

         19  ice-fishing, which is only allowed on 11 East of

         20  Hudson reservoirs, Lake Gilead and Lake Gleneida.

         21  Hunting was prohibited everywhere but in a certain

         22  area adjacent to the Cannonsville Reservoir. Hiking,

         23  biking and other types of active recreation were

         24  banned everywhere except on specified parcels, such

         25  as at Ashokan.
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          2                 Naturally, upstate residents had

          3  always chafed at these restrictions and were eager

          4  for the City to agree to lift these restrictions for

          5  newly-acquired land. The City did not agree to free

          6  access on all newly acquired parcels. It did agree

          7  to allow historic recreational uses to continue on

          8  newly acquired lands, subject to rules and

          9  regulations adopted by, and permits issued by, DEP,

         10  and provided that use of the property would neither

         11  threaten public safety nor water quality.

         12                 The City also agreed to conduct a

         13  comprehensive review of existing and potential

         14  recreational uses on lands owned by the City at the

         15  time the MOA was signed, and to submit a preliminary

         16  report on recreational uses of both previously

         17  acquired and newly acquired City lands by January

         18  21, 1999.

         19                 The City met the latter commitment by

         20  delivering a comprehensive report, entitled

         21  "Preliminary Report on Recreational Use of Water

         22  Supply Lands" on January 20th, of this year. That

         23  report was delivered to the Watershed Protection and

         24  Partnership council.

         25                 In this report, the City confirmed
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          2  its agreement to allow certain historic recreational

          3  uses, fishing, hunting and hiking, on newly acquired

          4  lands, except where DEP determines these uses

          5  threaten public safety or water quality.

          6                 We also agreed to evaluate the impact

          7  of other recreational uses on water quality for each

          8  individual parcel we are soliciting for purchase.

          9  Activities that we may permit on newly acquired

         10  lands are fishing, hunting, hiking, snow-shoeing,

         11  cross-country skiing and bird-watching. Activities

         12  that we are unlikely to allow are camping, use of

         13  motorized vehicles including motor boats,

         14  all-terrain vehicles and snowmobiles, horseback

         15  riding, and mountain biking. I have a couple of

         16  charts that show the percentages of newly-acquired

         17  acres that can be used for various recreational

         18  uses.

         19                 East of Hudson for fishing, this is

         20  the percent of fishable acquisition, not the total

         21  acquisition, pretty obviously it is tough to fish on

         22  land that has no water on it. So, this is basically

         23  90 percent, 95 percent of the land that has water on

         24  it we are permitting fishing.

         25                 Hiking, 92 percent of the total we
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          2  are permitting hiking.

          3                 Hunting, 74 percent of it. The total

          4  we are permitting hunting, we are protecting

          5  absolutely only seven percent of the land East of

          6  the Hudson.

          7                 West of the Hudson, the same 95

          8  percent of the fishable acquisitions, 79 percent of

          9  the land for hiking, 82 percent of it for hunting,

         10  and 16 percent of it protected.

         11                 Pursuant to the recommendations in

         12  our study, on April 1st we opened up 1,395 acres of

         13  newly acquired lands for fishing, with the exception

         14  of one parcel, we also opened up the same acres to

         15  hiking on June 5th, National Trails Day.

         16                 To hike on our properties to May 1st,

         17  2000, we require hiking permits. The interim permits

         18  are issued free of charge, and are accompanied by

         19  maps of the individual parcels. I brought along for

         20  the Committee applications for the permits, which we

         21  will be glad to issue to interested members before

         22  we leave the Committee room.

         23                 Next year we will be establishing a

         24  more comprehensive recreational permit system, so

         25  that users will only need to apply once for any of
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          2  the various possible uses. While hikers with permits

          3  are welcome to use the new properties, they must

          4  observe restrictions on the disposal of garbage and

          5  human waste, on bathing and swimming, on camping,

          6  picnicing and building fires, and on the use of any

          7  motorized vehicles.

          8                 For anyone wanting to fish on DEP

          9  property, a separate fishing requirement is still

         10  required.

         11                 To administer the program of

         12  recreational use over the long-term, DEP has

         13  recommended a partnership with local not for profit

         14  or governmental organizations, such as rod and gun

         15  clubs or sportsmen' federations, that could make

         16  recreational improvements and facilitate responsible

         17  use of our watershed lands in accordance with the

         18  restrictions we have placed on any individual

         19  parcel.

         20                 The last aspect of our land

         21  acquisition program that I will mention is our use

         22  of conservation easements. In general, such an

         23  easement is a permanently deeded covenant or

         24  restriction based on a piece of property which

         25  limits development, management or use of the land in
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          2  perpetuity. Property owners may sell conservation

          3  easements to the City while retaining private

          4  ownership.

          5                 For those lands exempted from the

          6  land acquisition program, the City is still

          7  permitted to purchase conservation easements in lieu

          8  of outright purchase of title.

          9                 The conservation easements directly

         10  acquired by the City, the New York State Attorney

         11  General will have third party enforcement rights

         12  subject to certain conditions.

         13                 To date the City has acquired

         14  conservation easements on 276 acres.

         15                 Conservation easements unfortunately

         16  take considerably longer to negotiate than fee

         17  acquisitions, so we expect to have many more

         18  easements signed by the end of this year, as a

         19  result of the number of easements under negotiation

         20  during the past two years.

         21                 The MOA also authorizes the City to

         22  spend up to $10 million of the amount set aside for

         23  land acquisition for the purchase of agriculture

         24  easements.

         25                 These are easements placed on land
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          2  that is in active agricultural production.

          3                 These easements place certain

          4  restrictions on future use and development of the

          5  property, but allow the continuance of agricultural

          6  production.

          7                 Only farms that have implemented

          8  Whole Farm Plans approved by the Watershed

          9  Agricultural Council are eligible to sell

         10  agricultural easements.

         11                 Finally, to further ensure that newly

         12  acquired properties are used for watershed

         13  protection purposes, the MOA provides that any

         14  property acquired by the City in fee will have a

         15  conservation easement placed on it to ensure that

         16  the land will be held in perpetuity in an

         17  undeveloped state.

         18                 The conservation easement will be

         19  granted to the Department of Environmental

         20  Conservation for the State of New York.

         21                 The Primacy Agency under the Surface

         22  Water Treatment Rule, be it either the federal EPA

         23  or the New York State Department of Health, will

         24  have third party enforcement rights.

         25                 I think you now have a sense of how
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          2  complicated our land acquisition process is.

          3  Although many large scale real estate transactions

          4  are probably equally complicated, I do not know of

          5  any other acquisition program that is subject to as

          6  much oversight from as many governments or is

          7  incumbent by as many guidelines and protocols as the

          8  City's.

          9                 All this notwithstanding, begin with

         10  the MOA signing the City's program land acquisition

         11  has been an unqualified success, in spite of the

         12  many challenges that it faces. I am confident that

         13  its success will continue, that we will be able to

         14  continue to meet all of the MOA's goals for land

         15  acquisition, as well as those for all the other

         16  watershed protection programs.

         17                 Investing in land in the watershed is

         18  costly and to do it according to the MOA specified

         19  process requires a great deal of patience, diligence

         20  and constant contact with upstate communities and

         21  their leaders. In the longrun I think we all agree

         22  that it is worth it.

         23                 This concludes my prepared remarks

         24  and we would be happy to take any questions.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Commissioner.

          3                 Let me also acknowledge, we have been

          4  joined by my colleague Council Member Marshall and

          5  Council Member Giullermo Linares.

          6                 Commissioner, while I am filling in

          7  let me perhaps ask you a question and then turn to

          8  my colleagues if they have questions to ask you.

          9                 As of the end of 1998, the second

         10  year of the Land Acquisition Program, a total of

         11  approximately 106,000 acres have been solicited

         12  resulting in 163 purchase contracts representing

         13  approximately 13,000 acres.

         14                 How many of these 13,000 acres are

         15  Category 1A or 1B and how many are Category 2,

         16  Category 3 or Category 4?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I will ask Deputy

         18  Commissioner Stasiuk to respond to that question. He

         19  is responsible for the program.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: Good

         21  morning, Councilman.

         22                 Area 1A we have closed on 1,001 acres

         23  and we have 1,230 under contract.

         24                 In area 1B, priority 1B, we have

         25  closed on 2,104 acres, and we have 3,908 under
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          2  contract. Priority area 2, we have closed on 2,602

          3  acres, we have 1,259 under contract. Priority area 3

          4  we closed on 116 acres and we have 805 under

          5  contract. In priority area 4, we closed on 956, and

          6  we have 906 under contract.

          7                 There is roughly 80 percent that are

          8  in areas 1 and 2.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My

         10  colleagues, does any Council Member have questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes.

         12                 I was looking at it, and it is a

         13  complex process, and I am going to try to, as I like

         14  to say, peel off some layers, just to understand

         15  this better.

         16                 But regarding our overall goals, is

         17  it correct that we don't have an acre-specific goal?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, we don't

         19  have an acre-specific requirement under the MOA.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Under the

         21  MOA.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We have a

         23  solicitation requirement under the MOA.

         24                 On the other hand, the agency

         25  believes that a reasonable goal for us to achieve
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          2  would be 100,000 acres over the program period. And

          3  we expect that we will meet that goal and we are

          4  working and targeting that goal. So that is a

          5  personal internal goal, not a legal --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right. Not

          7  imposed by the MOA.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: How much land

         10  does the City currently own?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: You mean, how

         12  much did we own before the program started? We owned

         13  approximately 6.2 percent of the 2000 acres, or

         14  approximately --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: I think

         16  it was around 86,400, somewhere in that range.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And with an

         18  internal objective, goal of 100,000?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: Yes, it

         20  would be 186,400.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Some day. At

         22  the end of the day.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: At the end of the

         24  day, and again, we expect that most of that will be

         25  done before the MOA is completed. I mean, well
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          2  before the MOA is completed based upon the targets.

          3  Consequently we think that what we are looking at is

          4  instead of owning six percent of the land, including

          5  the water, we would be looking to own about 16

          6  percent of the land in the watersheds, and since the

          7  State owns about 26 percent of that land and has

          8  purchased some additional parcels, we believe that

          9  we would get up to about 50, you know, somewhat

         10  under, just under 50 percent, all of the land in the

         11  watershed. So, we would effectively be controlling

         12  some 1,000 square miles of the 2,000 square miles in

         13  the watershed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: The original,

         15  your internal goal is based on -- is it based on

         16  science? Is it based on a sense that -- because I

         17  know that the MOA was a highly politically charged

         18  document, and that the upstate communities had a

         19  great deal to say about how much we can control what

         20  happens up there.

         21                 We have a different view of

         22  protecting the watershed I guess than they do and we

         23  sort of come to a middle ground. But is it based on

         24  --

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I don't think we
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          2  have too much difference in what we think needs to

          3  be done to protect the water, I think we share that.

          4  The problem is that we have an absolute feeling --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: No, I didn't

          6  suggest that the objective of protecting the water

          7  was different. I meant more along the lines of how

          8  to do it.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, how to do

         10  it is an issue --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: In terms of

         12  infringement on people.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Clearly, from a

         14  purely scientific standpoint the Commissioner can

         15  tell you as a educated individual in engineering and

         16  in science, that we would be much better off if we

         17  had the complete watershed all to ourselves and

         18  there was no one in it.

         19                 From the standpoint of the folks that

         20  live up there, they would like to see the water up

         21  there but they would like not to have any, you know,

         22  constraints on them. They would like to be

         23  self-policed and self-governed and that is fine.

         24                 What we are basically doing is

         25  recognizing there is an intermix of our needs in
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          2  this thing. Consequently we effectively are partners

          3  in protecting this water, and as partners we have to

          4  be sensitive to each one of the two individual

          5  partner's needs in the process, and there has to be

          6  a process of compromise.

          7                 The MOA represents the most involved

          8  compromise I have ever seen in my entire life, and I

          9  think that clearly the federal government believes

         10  it is a model to be used in other areas of the

         11  nation in so doing that.

         12                 Let me at that point ask the Deputy

         13  Commissioner to address that.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STURCKEN: If you

         15  turn to the science, and a lot of sciences really

         16  are, as you know, the fundamental principle behind

         17  the watershed protection program of which land

         18  acquisition is only one strategy, is that (a) the

         19  water quality now meets all foreseeable standards by

         20  EPA, it is healthy, it is safe, it is tasty, it is

         21  the whole nine yards.

         22                 In addition to that we are going to

         23  take certain critical lands, purchase them so that

         24  they can't be developed. Those are the closest to

         25  where they can do the most damage if there was
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          2  unregulated activity.

          3                 Third, we are going to regulate

          4  current activities and control them better. We are

          5  going to upgrade existing sewage treatment plants,

          6  we have prohibited certain activities from occurring

          7  in critical locations, and future activities in

          8  those non-critical locations have to meet very

          9  stringent standards.

         10                 So, we feel all of that is going to

         11  make the existing quality better and whatever future

         12  development occurs won't ever even bring it down to

         13  where it is now.

         14                 So, it is a comprehensive program,

         15  land ac is not our only weapon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We believe we

         18  will end up with, when this program is completed a

         19  quantum leap upward in the base of the quality of

         20  water because of the removal of pollutants from the

         21  wastewater treatment plant.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: The control of

         24  critical lands around the property, the regulations

         25  that we have that basically give us the authority
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          2  for the first time to provide environmental criteria

          3  to determine what people can do and not be able to

          4  do within the watershed areas.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: If I may,

          6  just one more second, in terms of your strategy for

          7  acquisition, did I hear correctly that 80 percent of

          8  acquisitions were in the priority 1 priority 2

          9  areas? In other words, the most sensitive areas?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: Yes, it

         11  is part of the reason why there is as much of 20

         12  percent is there was a residual amount of

         13  solicitations that came in unsolicited while the MOA

         14  was being negotiated and those weren't always in

         15  areas 1A and 1B, so we didn't pass them up, we took

         16  advantage of them. But our target has been on the

         17  more critical ones.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Those were

         19  essentially targets of opportunity. People came to

         20  us and said, look, here is a piece of property I

         21  have got, does it have any interest for you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right, they

         23  thought.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  During the

         25  course of the negotiation of the MOA, we were
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          2  prohibited from acting on this. So, some of those

          3  people waited two, three years for us to be free to

          4  be able to take that property on, and we felt it was

          5  reasonable to take that property.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Finally, the

          7  tact from your comments seems to suggest that the

          8  preference would be going for the easements, as

          9  opposed to the --

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: My father didn't

         11  raise any idiots, if I can get it cheaper and

         12  achieve what I need to do better for me because then

         13  the City gets the advantage of being able to spread

         14  its money over a bigger area and we get a bigger

         15  bang for the buck. Pure and simple. We pay less real

         16  estate taxes, because if you assume that the

         17  easement is 50 percent of the value instead of

         18  paying 100 percent of the real estate taxes, I pay

         19  50 percent. I pay half the value instead of the full

         20  value so I control the environment on that property

         21  for half the cost that it would be if I bought the

         22  whole thing.

         23                 Third of all, and this is important

         24  because this is a partnership, folks who live up in

         25  that area who are really interested in the
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          2  environment, who really would like to help us in

          3  this process but who frankly have roots down there

          4  for a long, long time by giving us an easement have

          5  the right to continue to control their property,

          6  continue to fence their property and keep other

          7  people off it and know that no one will ever be

          8  developing around them, in them or what have you,

          9  because we are providing that protection by the

         10  environmental easements. So, it is a good business

         11  sense and I would like to encourage people to use

         12  the environmental conservation easements, you know,

         13  more.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And we

         17  have also been joined by Council Member Sabini.

         18                 Council Member Marshall.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: We have been

         20  happy to witness the original resolve of our

         21  relationship with the folks around the watershed,

         22  and now we are into the process and I am just

         23  looking, what exactly is the process? We understand

         24  that you have to preliminarily receive the Mayor's

         25  approval and then there is a final approval by the
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          2  Mayor, exactly how is all of that working out? You

          3  know, because it would seem to me that your

          4  Department is certainly well-equipped and really

          5  knows your stuff and you work hard at it, but

          6  certainly I understand Mayoral approval, but I am

          7  trying to understand how it works in this whole view

          8  of things. We have to at least deal with the person

          9  who we are buying the property from and Army Corps

         10  and everybody else.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: You will hear how

         12  we deal with the individual persons here, but

         13  obviously we provide all of the technical

         14  information, appraisals and everything else. We put

         15  the package together and when the package is

         16  completed it goes to me. I sign off on the package

         17  and submit it forward so the Deputy Mayor for

         18  Operations at the Mayor's Office can then begin its

         19  review of it. But why don't I give you the in-depth

         20  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But then you

         22  need a final approval also.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes, that is

         24  absolutely correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right.
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          2                 MR. TOBIAS: Good morning, I am Dave

          3  Tobias.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Good

          5  morning.

          6                 MR. TOBIAS: I will just give you a

          7  quick summary, or try to, of our process from

          8  solicitation through closing. Basically we send

          9  letters out, when land owners contact us and say I

         10  am interested, we go out and do a site visit. If the

         11  City is in turn interested, then we, and we agree

         12  conceptually on what property we are talking about

         13  pursuing, the City undertakes an appraisal of the

         14  property, we then make a purchase offer based on

         15  that appraisal.

         16                 If all goes well, if we have an

         17  acceptance, the land owner signs our contract. Once

         18  that happens, the Commissioner countersigns, we then

         19  get a three percent downpayment to the land owner.

         20                 Once the contract is countersigned,

         21  the City, the land acquisition program is then under

         22  pressure to perform a number of obligations from

         23  title work, to survey, to site inspection, to

         24  mayoral approvals, to community review, and I will

         25  just run through those very quickly.
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          2                 The survey is obvious. Title work I

          3  think is obvious. We are performing very high

          4  standard surveys and title work on every property is

          5  given that we are going to be owning these

          6  eventually forever in most cases.

          7                 We then submit for, at the early

          8  stage we submit to the community review process,

          9  which is local consultation. We have four partners,

         10  the local town, the federal EPA, the West or East of

         11  Hudson Sporting Advisory Committee, and I am

         12  forgetting one partners - State DEC. Once those four

         13  partners, as those four partners are notified, we

         14  then may have discussions with any or all of those

         15  parties. We then are concluding the rest of our

         16  services.

         17                 At the point where we have a

         18  preliminary survey, we go to what is called the COPA

         19  meeting, the Certificate of Preliminary Approval

         20  meeting, where Myrna Ramon, from the Mayor's Office

         21  of Operations, and DEP Counsel, OMB and others are

         22  present to go over our projects. We make a formal

         23  presentation to them. We get the COPA signoff, the

         24  preliminary sign-off. We then advertise publicly in

         25  papers both up in the county of the subject property
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          2  and in the City to make sure that the public is

          3  generally aware that we are purchasing section block

          4  and lot number XYZ.

          5                 Once we have the advertisements

          6  completed, we then hold the public hearing down here

          7  in the City, those are generally not attended by

          8  anyone really, those are a formality based on City

          9  code with respect to acquiring real estate property,

         10  and are separate from the local consultation process

         11  upstate.

         12                 At that point we then expect to and

         13  hope to get what we call the COFA, the Certificate

         14  of Final Adoption by the Mayor's Office of

         15  Operations. And at that point we can then go forward

         16  with scheduling and actual closing with the land

         17  owner at which point we sit down, transfer deed and

         18  pay them 97 percent of the remaining price of the

         19  property, remembering that we paid them three

         20  percent up front. And that is in a nutshell the

         21  solicitation and closing process.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, first of

         24  all I want to mention that Council Member Fiala is

         25  here from Staten Island and Mr. Sabini from Queens
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          2  and Mr. Leffler from Queens.

          3                 Mr. Sabini is now up for questioning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

          5                 Good morning, Commissioner.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we have been

          7  joined by Kathryn Freed of New York.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Just to follow

          9  up Council Member Marshall's question, it was my

         10  understanding that in addition to all of those

         11  processes that were just outlined, that there is

         12  final Mayoral approval after the public hearing.

         13                 For something that seems to have such

         14  an urgent mission, it seems like there is a lot of

         15  shuffling around between your agency and City Hall

         16  back and forth twice it looks like; how come?

         17                 MR. TOBIAS: I guess there are several

         18  issues. They relate to in part --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you want to

         20  identify yourself.

         21                 MR. TOBIAS: I am sorry. Dave Tobias,

         22  Director of Land Acquisition and Stewardship for New

         23  York City DEP.

         24                 Just to try to answer your questions,

         25  there are a number of series of steps that are
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          2  required by City code before the City can actually

          3  purchase real property, whether it be in New York

          4  City or 150 miles away from New York City. Many of

          5  those are outlined in the City Charter and in the

          6  City Code. Those require basically a sign-off on the

          7  Mayor's Office for every property acquired and as a

          8  result of that it is stipulated that a map must be

          9  viewed and approved. And while there are some gray

         10  areas with respect to what that map must look like,

         11  we have tried to work out a process which is both

         12  efficient and reasonable and of course adhering to

         13  the guidelines of the City Charter to make sure that

         14  we meet those obligations.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Well, as the

         16  Chairman of the Subcommittee of the Land Use

         17  Committee that deals with public siting, I am

         18  familiar with what the Charter says on acquisition,

         19  but it seems to me that there is no requirement that

         20  the Mayor's office get involved in this purchase

         21  twice, which is what your procedure outlines.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAPIN:

         23  Diana Chapin, First Deputy Commissioner.

         24                 I have often attended the COPA

         25  meetings Councilman Sabini, and the purpose for
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          2  those meetings is that the Mayor's Office of

          3  Operations and the Office of Management and Budget

          4  can ask pertinent questions of the value of the real

          5  property and why these particular parcels were

          6  selected, and that is really a detailed

          7  investigation at that point by the Mayor's Office

          8  and his staff people, to make sure that these

          9  acquisitions are properly chosen, and that is the

         10  oversight the Mayor's Office is conducting over the

         11  selection. Thereafter it is a process that normally

         12  the Deputy Mayor or Mayor would sign based on those

         13  preliminary reviews, but one is a formal signature

         14  by the Mayor's Office and the other is really the

         15  oversight review of our agency to make sure that we

         16  are properly performing our jobs. I think that is a

         17  pretty normal process really, and it is not really

         18  lengthy.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: When was this

         20  process established?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAPIN:

         22  From the beginning.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That has been

         24  the watershed acquisition policy from the beginning?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAPIN:
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          2  That is correct, Councilman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay.

          4                 On the idea that there has been sort

          5  of limited acquisition in and around Kensico, why

          6  were those 1Bs, why do you need to acquire five-acre

          7  lumps in Kensico? Wouldn't it be easier to make them

          8  smaller tracks?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: It is a

         10  negotiated part of the MOA. The limitations are on

         11  the West of Hudson parcels, not on the East of

         12  Hudson parcels.

         13                 But, again, it was a part of the give

         14  and take, if you will, of the five-sided

         15  negotiations that turned into the MOA.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  There

         17  are some areas of Kensico that are the 1A and we

         18  have acquired parcels, a parcel less than five acres

         19  in Kensico.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Eight parcels?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Yes, a

         22  parcel.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That is not a

         24  lot of land.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, but the
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          2  criticality (sic) of that parcel was the key to it

          3  and the location of it has had a major impact on the

          4  environment of the water.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We have heard

          6  in the media and before this Committee discussions

          7  about gaps or accusations of gaps in the policing of

          8  the watershed area, and I know you use posting and

          9  fences and controls, how do you determine what gets

         10  fenced and what doesn't?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  On the

         12  existing watershed lands?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  The

         15  existing watershed lands we try and fence those

         16  areas that you can have immediate access to the

         17  reservoir. That being said, because the law requires

         18  us to make fishing accessible, we also have areas of

         19  ingress, even though it is fenced.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: If someone is

         21  caught doing something, whether it is dumping or

         22  using a rec vehicle in areas they are not supposed

         23  to, watershed police presumably arrive, they issue a

         24  summons, correct?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay.

          3                 Who is the summons answerable to?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  The

          5  local court.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Like a town

          7  court?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Right.

          9  Village court, town court.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: All right.

         11                 And are there specific -- is there a

         12  specific fine structure depending on what you do in

         13  the watershed area?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: No, it

         15  would depend on the local ordinance.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: It would

         17  depend on the local ordinance?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  That's

         19  right. Because we are enforcing basically the State

         20  trespass law.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right, okay.

         22                 So, if I use a recreational vehicle

         23  at the Scohary Reservoir (phonetic) and I dump, by

         24  reving it up I dump soil into the reservoir, what is

         25  going to happen?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: You

          3  would probably have fallen into the Reservoir if you

          4  were at Scohary, because it is pretty steep around

          5  the side of the reservoir.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay. Give me

          7  another reservoir then.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:

          9  Actually, the recreational vehicles, the only place

         10  we have trouble with is on the aqueducts.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I am trying to

         12  get an idea of what the fine structure would be.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: I can

         14  get you the specifics, I don't want to --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Well, give me

         16  an example.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:

         18  Generally 50 to a couple of hundred dollars, for

         19  trespass with a vehicle.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: What about

         21  dumping?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: That

         23  would be a violation of the Environmental

         24  Conservation Law and we would seek higher penalties

         25  for that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And these are

          3  written by the watershed police?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That are in

          6  effect deputized by the local --

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, we have a

          8  Police Department that is as full a Police

          9  Department as the NYPD. We are not deputized by

         10  anyone.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I am using a

         12  term of art.

         13                 What I am saying is that they are

         14  allowed to write summonses against the local

         15  ordinance.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: By law, correct.

         17                 Additionally keep in mind that the

         18  local jurisdiction has their own officers and we

         19  have them also on our behalf write the same

         20  violations on our lands also.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: How many

         22  summonses have the watershed police written in a

         23  given fiscal year recently?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: I would

         25  have to get you the specifics. We have done roughly
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          2  600 in the last two to three years, that is what I

          3  seem to recall. I don't have the figures with me. I

          4  noticed in the prepared questions that some of them

          5  went to, is this just trespass, how many are for

          6  dumping.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: And we

          9  can break that out for you. But actual dumping on

         10  reservoir land, we have very little of that, we have

         11  more environmental violations in the watershed on

         12  non-City-owned land than we do on City-owned land.

         13  Most of the City-owned land violations are trespass.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: What is the

         15  record of how many are sustained, versus how many

         16  are dismissed?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: I would

         18  have to get that for you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: You have a

         20  pretty good conviction record?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: I would

         22  really have to get that for you because I don't want

         23  to venture a guess on it. I think we have a pretty

         24  good conviction record, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: All right. I
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          2  think we would like to see those, because we keep

          3  hearing of gaps, a lot of it is anecdotal evidence,

          4  and maybe if we saw some empirical evidence we would

          5  be better able to judge whether or not we are doing

          6  a better job.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Not a problem. We

          8  will get you that, but, again, keep in mind that

          9  part of the enforcement is our investigative staff,

         10  so what we will do is we will give you not just the

         11  PD and not the EED, we will give you the whole gamut

         12  of what our enforcement is.

         13                 What we cannot, or probably cannot

         14  give you, is what local authorities might do, and

         15  that would be piled on top of what we do.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Would you

         17  venture a guess? And again, you are not under oath

         18  and no one is holding you to this, but would you

         19  venture a guess as to what share of the enforcement

         20  is done by localities?

         21                 In other words, if you write 100

         22  summonses, does the locality write ten or none or

         23  200 or?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: The

         25  locality writes very little on our land. But in the
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          2  watershed they would write summonses of

          3  environmental and local ordinances that are

          4  environmental in nature and we have no record of

          5  that ourselves.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I understand

          7  that, but I mean, you must have a feeling, you are

          8  up there, you have personnel up there.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: I would

         10  say West of the Hudson mostly enforcement activity

         11  is either by environmental conservation police or

         12  ourselves. There are very few local Police

         13  Departments. There is some presence by the state and

         14  there are county sheriffs, but they have very little

         15  to do with environmental regulations.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That was my

         17  opinion as well.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: East of

         19  the Hudson on the other hand is a whole different

         20  ball game.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Understood.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is Mr. Carrion

         24  here? Okay. If we could interrupt you, Mr.

         25  Commissioner, we wanted to vote on the resolution.
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          2  Certain members have to leave for other business, so

          3  we wanted to vote the 764-A out.

          4                 But before I do that, I want to make

          5  sure that everybody knows that we have copies of the

          6  resolutions, the amended resolution here, if they

          7  wish copies of it. And we have done changes,

          8  basically without reading the individual changes in

          9  there, is that we have the title and resolve clause

         10  of Resolution 764 have been changed by calling upon

         11  the United States Army Corps of Engineers to

         12  prohibit the use of all nationwide wetland permits

         13  in the New York City watershed and to adopt a

         14  regional condition for New York for new wetlands

         15  permits, which would require obtaining an individual

         16  permit under the Clean Water Act.

         17                 Under this scenario wetlands of any

         18  size could not be filled without getting a permit

         19  called an individual permit, which would require

         20  preconstruction notification to the Corps and other

         21  reviewing agencies. Approval from the Corps would be

         22  required before the proposed activity could

         23  commence.

         24                 We are also removing the sixth and

         25  seventh whereas clause from the original resolution
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          2  764, and we are making sure that the resolve clause

          3  is in conformance with the title.

          4                 Members all being here, I would like

          5  to call for a vote.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Michels.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I vote aye, and

          8  I think this is a very important resolution. We are

          9  sending a very important message that our wetlands

         10  should be sacrosanct and that it is extremely

         11  important to keep the water supply pure and also do

         12  everything we can to maintain the filtration

         13  avoidance which will double, if this doesn't work

         14  will double the cost of our water and sewer charges.

         15  I therefore recommend a vote aye.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Leffler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Pass.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Robles.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Marshall.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Aye.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Sabini.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Provenzano.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Boyland.

          4                 (No response.)

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Carrion.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Aye.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Fiala.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye. And I say

          9  nothwithstanding the excellent job that the City is

         10  doing with respect to protecting the watershed, I

         11  think the federal government needs to take a more

         12  proactive stand and in the testimony at the last

         13  hearing I got the sense that they didn't know

         14  exactly where they were going, so this is a

         15  resolution and I want to go on record as supporting

         16  the watershed. I think we do need to do more to

         17  protect it, so that as the Chairman said, we avoid

         18  incurring these phenomenal costs that could be

         19  imposed upon us if we don't take this action.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Mr. Leffler.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Eight in the

         24  affirmative, none in the negative.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The resolution
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          2  is passed.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The resolution

          4  is passed.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Mr. Leffler.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I just wanted

         10  to ask -- Good morning, Commissioners. I just wanted

         11  to ask about the way in which the City solicits

         12  acreage. There are amounts or numbers each year, if

         13  at the end of the year the City has reached a

         14  certain target and sees desirable additional

         15  acreage, is the City prohibited from making

         16  additional acquisition in that year?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No. These are

         18  minimums.

         19                 And in point of fact, we had people

         20  who walked in the door knowing that the MOA was

         21  going to be signed and said, you know, here I have

         22  got something and I may be a little early but take a

         23  look at it. We still get people who walk in the door

         24  and say we are interested and will you talk to us.

         25                 I get calls on a weekly basis.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I have some

          4  questions also, Commissioner.

          5                 According to the March 31, 1999

          6  filtration avoidance annual report prepared by your

          7  agency, the execution of the first conservation

          8  easement purchase contract has been delayed.

          9                 The report explains that conservation

         10  easements take "considerably longer to negotiate

         11  than fee projects", fee being, in simple terms fee

         12  being the land itself.

         13                 In previous testimony before the

         14  Committee, you indicated that your agency intends to

         15  take maximum advantage of the conservation easement

         16  options and you explained pretty much why and I

         17  intend to agree with you that there is certainly an

         18  advantage to that, because they cost less, and

         19  having to acquire the fee title and give us

         20  virtually the same protection of the water supply.

         21  Could you in a very thumbnail way describe the

         22  process in which conservation easements are

         23  solicited and negotiated if they differ

         24  substantially from the fee itself?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, they are
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          2  exactly the same. The only difference is this, when

          3  you are buying fee title, the owner knows he or she

          4  is walking off the land and there is no reason for

          5  them to be concerned about what happens after the

          6  closure of the sale.

          7                 On the other hand, with an easement,

          8  the folks are going to continue to live and control

          9  the land and it is much more difficult to put

         10  together and there are many more questions as to

         11  what I am going to be permitted to do, what you are

         12  permitted to do, how long will you be able to do it,

         13  if we have a problem, how do you resolve the

         14  problem, et cetera. So, it is a much more involved

         15  negotiation. That is why it takes longer to do it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What are the

         17  length of these easements that are negotiated? How

         18  long --

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: They are in

         20  perpetuity. Once they are negotiated and signed off

         21  on, it runs with the land forever.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the

         23  procedure, if the person living on the land of an

         24  easement wants to do certain things or when we find

         25  he is doing things he shouldn't be doing, is there a
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          2  mechanism to make sure the agreement that is signed

          3  --

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: The easement

          5  would specify that and how it is to be done.

          6                 If they are doing something that

          7  violates the easement there is enforcement rights

          8  that are in the easement, as I indicated in my

          9  statement, so if we don't take the individual to

         10  task for it, the oversight agency has the right to

         11  do that on our behalf because we are basically

         12  giving them those rights in the easement itself.

         13                 So, it is not only us that have the

         14  right to enforce those, it is the agency that has

         15  primacy in the state.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you believe

         17  that the easements will comprise the significant

         18  part of the land acquisition program?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: You mean in total

         20  terms of acreage?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No. The answer is

         23  no.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What percentage

         25  do you think -- what do you project? What are they
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          2  now, and what do you project in the future?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Twenty percent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Twenty percent.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: And we haven't

          6  purchased any easements yet, have we?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, that is not

          8  true. We have purchased easements.

          9                 Oh, I am sorry. We have signed the

         10  first contract, we have not closed on it.

         11                 But the negotiation end is over

         12  because the terms have been outlined --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We haven't gone

         14  to contract, as we say?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, we have gone

         16  to contract, we haven't gone to title, right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: See, I am

         18  getting mixed up now. We haven't gone to closing.

         19                 Are there any other questions from

         20  any other members?

         21                 That being the case, Mr.

         22  Commissioner, thank you very much. I look forward to

         23  continuing this review. From time to time, if there

         24  is any way we can be supportive of what you are

         25  doing up there, I want to pay you the highest
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          2  compliments to your agency for what they are doing,

          3  as far as acquiring of property and the conservation

          4  easements.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We thank you. We

          6  are very pleased to be here and whenever you need us

          7  we would certainly be willing to provide you with

          8  anything you need as we go along.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I think we

         10  would like to arrange maybe some time in the future

         11  if the Committee take a trip to see some of the

         12  work.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Love to do it

         14  with you. Just get in touch with me. I am up there

         15  on a regular basis, and if we can bring you along

         16  with us, we will arrange to do it. I think you will

         17  see some remarkable sites up there.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good. So,

         19  we can continue to think that the filtration

         20  avoidance come the Year 2005 will be continued.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That is a good

         22  question. We have a function on the 27th of this

         23  month -- I am sorry, July. What I will do is I will

         24  get in touch with you, give you the outline and let

         25  you know. We will give you an opportunity to meet

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  some of the people up there and to talk to some of

          3  the people that are our partners in the process.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I have met many

          5  of them but I would like to continue the

          6  relationship.

          7                 Thank you very, very much.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Thank you.

          9                 Don't forget we have those hiking

         10  permits, we will be looking to see --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Did you talk

         12  about them when I was gone?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes, I did. We

         14  have them here with us and if you will fill out an

         15  application, I would be very pleased to issue them

         16  to you.

         17                 What I can do is give them to one of

         18  your staff members.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If we misbehave,

         20  you can tell us to go and take a hike.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: What we will do

         22  is we will issue NOVs if you are bad, but we expect

         23  that you will be there to help us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

         25  very much to you and your staff. We really
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          2  appreciate it.

          3                 Mr. Forker. Tim forker from the

          4  Manhattan Borough President's Office, who's name is

          5  C. Virginia Fields.

          6                 MR. FORKER: Good morning, Chairman

          7  Michels.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For the

          9  information of anyone here, we do have applications

         10  for the hiking permits. A limited number of these

         11  but nevertheless very valuable, and this is not an

         12  open solicitation, but we have them here if you want

         13  to use them.

         14                 Do you think the best way to make

         15  sure our wetlands, our watershed is kept in good

         16  condition is by people from New York City who have

         17  an interest in hiking in them and making sure they

         18  are keeping them in good condition, and reporting

         19  any infractions to the proper authorities.

         20                 Mr. Forker, continue.

         21                 MR. FORKER: Good morning, Chairman

         22  Michels and members of the Committee and the

         23  Council. I came here today really just to speak to

         24  the resolution. I am not going to make any comments

         25  regarding the land acquisition program.
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          2                 We are pleased that the Committee has

          3  adopted the resolution and hope that it will be

          4  adopted by the full Council very soon.

          5                 As you are well aware, wetlands act

          6  as the natural filter to the water supply, wetlands

          7  act to collect sediments and break down nutrients

          8  and other pollutants. They also help reduce erosion,

          9  contain stormwater runoff that could otherwise wash

         10  contaminants into watersheds streams and reservoirs.

         11  In sum, wetlands are an essential component of the

         12  natural infrastructure of protecting New York City's

         13  drinking water quality over the long term.

         14                 Pursuant to the Clean Water Act, the

         15  Army Corps of Engineers decided to allow

         16  region-specific conditions to be applied in permits

         17  issued by the regional offices to meet the overall

         18  regulatory mandate of ensuring that activities

         19  affecting wetlands will certainly have a minimal

         20  environmental impact.

         21                 In the New York City watershed where

         22  the health of wetlands is critical, the Army Corps

         23  proposed to apply regional conditions to wetlands,

         24  larger than a third of an acre. Such an approach and

         25  indeed covering all of the wetlands that the
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          2  Council's amended resolution suggests is a much

          3  needed act to ensure water quality, since New York

          4  City's watershed regulations address wetlands only

          5  greater than 12.4 acres.

          6                 If the Army Corps fails to adopt its

          7  proposed regional condition for the City's

          8  watershed, water quality could be degraded and the

          9  risk rises significantly that the multi-billion

         10  dollar filtration project for the Catskill Delaware

         11  water supply would be required.

         12                 As many have noted over the past

         13  year, the City's Department of Environmental

         14  Protection first urged the Army Corps to adopt

         15  stringent wetlands standards and then revised itself

         16  once the Corps proposal was published.

         17                 The City Council's resolution is

         18  important so that the Administration's change in its

         19  stance will not be construed by the Army Corps as

         20  reflecting all of the needs and wishes of the City's

         21  government or its citizens.

         22                 In conclusion, Borough President

         23  Fields supports the City Council's resolution urging

         24  the Army Corps of Engineers to adopt its proposed

         25  special conditions for wetlands permits in the New
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          2  York City Watershed.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you. Our

          5  best regards to the Borough President. We always

          6  appreciate the work that you do on her behalf.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 The next witness is Jeff Baker, from

          9  the Coalition of Watershed Towns. He comes to us

         10  from Delhi, New York.

         11                 MR. BAKER: It is Delhi. Jeff Baker, I

         12  am Counsel to the Coalition of Watershed Towns.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Welcome. You are

         14  always welcome.

         15                 MR. BAKER: Thank you.

         16                 I want to speak solely on the issue

         17  of the resolution that the Committee just passed,

         18  and express my extreme dismay and the Coalition's

         19  dismay at the action, the really ill-thought out

         20  position the Council has taken. I commend your

         21  interest and your desire to protect the watershed. I

         22  am afraid you have gotten wrapped up into a

         23  political knot without understanding the full scope

         24  of the proposal that you are supporting.

         25                 I think it was Councilman Fiala who
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          2  expressed his concern of the added protection that

          3  it would save the City money in the long run by

          4  ensuring the protection of the filtration waiver.

          5                 I suggest to you, Councilman, the

          6  opposite will happen as a result of this. Because of

          7  the broad breath of taking the position if it would

          8  ultimately be adopted, if no nationwide permits

          9  whatsoever, you would be hamstringing your own

         10  Department of Environmental Protection in

         11  instituting many of the infrastructure and

         12  recruitment projects, which you have already

         13  committed to, and increasing the cost of those

         14  projects probably exponentially.

         15                 Let me give you a few examples off

         16  the top of my head.

         17                 Every time you do a contract now of

         18  stream corridor protection, which is one of the best

         19  initiatives under the MOA, to protect the erosion of

         20  the banks, of the rivers and the increased

         21  sedimentation, particularly in Scohary and the

         22  Ashokan, you will now need an individual permit from

         23  the Army Corps for each of those activities. That is

         24  an 18-month process. It is a very expensive process

         25  that has to go through and will delay and increase
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          2  the cost of all of your programs.

          3                 You are also going through an upgrade

          4  of all of the wastewater treatment plants in the

          5  watershed. Many of those upgrades are going to

          6  require reconstruction of certain areas and

          7  expansion of some of the plants, to take into

          8  account the added treatment requirements. Those will

          9  invariably trigger now the requirement for an

         10  individual permit.

         11                 When we are replacing the septic

         12  systems in the watershed, the ones that don't meet

         13  current standards and are failing and have to be

         14  replaced with new leach fields, invariable most of

         15  those now will require an individual permit.

         16                 This is not hyperbole. The fact of

         17  the matter is, under the federal law for wetlands

         18  there is no jurisdictional minimum size.

         19                 It is not a one-acre minimum size, it

         20  is a zero minimum size. It is as long as it is small

         21  enough to be mapped. And you can ask the Corps, they

         22  have literally taken jurisdiction over wetlands the

         23  size of tiretracks and puddles, and when they are

         24  put together add up and create the thresholds where

         25  the nationwide permits come in.
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          2                 So, you were doing an enormous

          3  disservice, both to yourselves and to the actions in

          4  the watershed by taking this absolute eschew, which

          5  goes way beyond any of the issues raised by the

          6  proposed changes with the nationwide permit program

          7  and takes out of the recognition of the program that

          8  certain minimal activities can happen because a

          9  given puddle or a small area does not have an impact

         10  on water quality and is not a resource that requires

         11  the stringent and tiny consuming review associated

         12  with an individual permit.

         13                 Mr. Chairman, I have to take

         14  exception with your role in this as a member of the

         15  Water Protection and Partnership Council. You are

         16  aware that the Council has been talking about this

         17  issue, and the Council has been working at the staff

         18  level to discuss this issue, as Commissioner Miele

         19  pointed out they are still compiling the relevant

         20  information to address the question of the below the

         21  head waters and above the head waters, in that

         22  scope, and a recognition at the Council and staff

         23  level we have had is that the nationwide permit at

         24  the national level is undergoing revision and we

         25  have been expecting the final version, if you will,
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          2  to be coming out of the course in March, it still

          3  has not come out. There was a recognition that we

          4  should not waste our resources and move forward on

          5  that until we know exactly what the national

          6  framework is that we have to work in. Then is the

          7  proper time to evaluate whether regional conditions

          8  should be put in.

          9                 To come forward at this point with

         10  this kind of a resolution, Mr. Chairman, you have

         11  talked about maintaining a relationship with the

         12  upstate communities and maintaining a relationship

         13  of a partnership, this does serious harm to that,

         14  because you are not putting in the time and giving

         15  consideration of the issues of the full effect of

         16  how far you are going.

         17                 If it is the position of the City

         18  Council that it should never miss an opportunity to

         19  have added protection of the watershed, you are

         20  doing something that is (a) contrary to the MOA,

         21  which recognized essentially that we go through this

         22  and see how it works for five years, before we start

         23  new initiatives, but you are genuine about those

         24  concerns, I suggest the city start spending a little

         25  more money on the programs that are underfunded in
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          2  the watershed and it will have a much greater

          3  impact.

          4                 The septic program is doing good

          5  work. For a variety of reasons it is seriously

          6  underfunded, given the underestimates of the cost

          7  and the scope of the problem.

          8                 The Coalition, the Catskill Watershed

          9  Corporation could easily use $50 million more for

         10  that. The Stream Corridor Production Program is

         11  budgeted at only $5 million, that needs

         12  significantly more money, notwithstanding the

         13  changes you have just proposed regarding the

         14  wetlands.

         15                 There isn't sufficient money in the

         16  new infrastructure program to go far along in the

         17  communities that need sewage infrastructure to deal

         18  with the high concentrations of failing septics in

         19  densely populated areas.

         20                 This really is a short-sighted

         21  political movement. Speaking for myself right now, I

         22  understand the concerns and the anger the people in

         23  the City of New York have had over the repeal of the

         24  commuter tax. That was a shortsighted political move

         25  of people one upping each other without any
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          2  attention to the consequence of their action.

          3                 Your actions here regarding the

          4  nationwide permits are identical to that, and this

          5  is an issue that requires not political posturing

          6  but governmental leadership, and by taking this

          7  position you have shown that you do not understand

          8  the full scope of the federal program, what you are

          9  effectively asking the federal government to do, you

         10  are going contrary to the trust of the watershed

         11  communities, and you are counterproductive to the

         12  City's own interests, and I would urge you to please

         13  individually reconsider your votes on this matter.

         14  Reconsider it before it goes up to the full Council

         15  and think about it far more clearly.

         16                 You are going far beyond the

         17  question, the legitimate question that was raised

         18  before of opening wetlands below the head waters, is

         19  that appropriate? That is an area that is

         20  inappropriate for discussion, I won't disagree with

         21  that. To do what you are doing now is so far beyond

         22  what is otherwise being considered, is that it does

         23  serious harm to the program.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just
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          2  respond to you and say this: What we are doing today

          3  is the sense of the Council. This is a resolution,

          4  which we think is an important resolution to let

          5  people know where the City Council stands. It has

          6  been within the parameters we were given, you are

          7  either going to have the individual permits, as far

          8  as we understand, or you are going to have regional.

          9  We have opted for individual and to have it as

         10  extensive as possible.

         11                 The commuter tax, which I do not like

         12  to allude to, is actually law. It went into effect,

         13  the State Legislature, without thinking, I am glad

         14  you are sympathetic to us, people who take from us

         15  and don't return anything, we at least are returning

         16  something to the upstate community by way of money

         17  and are trying to do what we can. So I don't think

         18  it is an improper analogy. That actually went into

         19  effect. We are trying to influence the Army Corps of

         20  Engineers and we are acting within the parameters in

         21  which we are given.

         22                 We are talking about the wetlands.

         23  Everybody who understands the wetlands knows the

         24  wetlands are vital, they are the main filtration, of

         25  the ecosystem that will protect our water supply,
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          2  and this is something of vital importance to us.

          3                 We don't regard this as political. We

          4  regard this as a position we want to take, and I

          5  would hope that we would be supported in Upstate New

          6  York by trying to find a way of getting our permits

          7  which do not take as much time and do not cost as

          8  much money, but give us the opportunity to makes

          9  sure the permits that are issued, we are not saying

         10  they shouldn't issue permits, the ones that are

         11  issues are ones that will not in any way damage the

         12  water supply, and that is where we join with you and

         13  that is our feeling. So, I think you have tried to

         14  paint us into a corner which we reject. We don't

         15  really feel that we are that much against what is

         16  going on upstate. I, for one, have been very

         17  soliticitous of the views and understand that when I

         18  was at the conference of the Partnership Council, I

         19  understood that, but I think it is important that

         20  the people from upstate and the Army Corps of

         21  Engineers understand the feeling, the sense of

         22  feeling that the people of the City of New York know

         23  how important this water supply is to us, and that

         24  is what we have conveyed.

         25                 MR. BAKER: Well, Mr. Chairman, I
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          2  would give a little more credit to this Council than

          3  you would in to the extent of when there is a vote

          4  of the full Council, the legislative body of the

          5  City of New York, asking the federal government to

          6  induce some rule making, this is more than simply a

          7  voice of support. You are essentially saying that if

          8  you have the legislative authority to do this, you

          9  would be enacting this on your own and it is a major

         10  political statement that is being put forward by the

         11  Council, which I would assume would have an impact

         12  on the decision-makers who are viewing it, given the

         13  stature of this organization. And to simply say that

         14  you had a choice of all individual permits or

         15  nationwide permits is far too simplistic and the

         16  presentations that were given to you by the Corps

         17  and EPA last time, and what was shown at the

         18  Partnership Council, shows that there is an enormous

         19  range of alternatives that are available and that

         20  the consequences of when you are getting into the

         21  federal system of what is being proposed has an

         22  enormous effect which you really should not

         23  minimize, and it is more appropriate for a

         24  deliberative analysis, and it should not -- you

         25  should not be doing an end-around around the
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          2  Partnership Council, which provides a means for the

          3  more careful deliberation and discussion of these

          4  issues, so that this Committee and the full Council

          5  would have the benefit of that analysis.

          6                 After that point, if the Council

          7  wants to take the position, obviously it is your

          8  prerogative to do so, but to do so at this time and

          9  at this level is going to be very detrimental to the

         10  partnership efforts between New York City and the

         11  Upstate communities.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I might answer

         13  that by saying we meet on a limited basis and we

         14  understand that the decision by the Army Corps of

         15  Engineers is within a matter of months, we have to

         16  go on record and we want them to understand our

         17  position on it. We hope that maybe they will come up

         18  with a position that will protect our wetlands and

         19  it is important that it not give problems to the

         20  Upstate communities that you represent. But the fact

         21  of the matter is, it is important that our position

         22  be known and the sense of this body be known, since

         23  an outside authority is going to make the decision,

         24  not us. Unlike the State Legislature that went ahead

         25  and made a decision for us, even though they only
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          2  partially represent us.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 MR. BAKER: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We appreciate

          6  you coming here, we appreciate your thoughts, but we

          7  wish to convey to you that we don't wish this to be

          8  regarded as a hostile act against upstate, and we

          9  will continue to work with you and want to work with

         10  you. So now you have gotten a sense of where the

         11  City Council is and where we stand on the issue. We

         12  want to make sure that the wetlands are protected

         13  and that legitimate construction would go on within

         14  the area would go on and we would make every effort

         15  to help you do that, since we are providing a great

         16  deal of money into the watershed area, as you know.

         17                 MR. BAKER: When I am asked by my

         18  clients to convey what happened here and explain

         19  this, and I will explain the resolution passed by

         20  this Committee and   convey your desire to continue

         21  to work in a partnership and that the community

         22  should not take this in the bad light --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Hostile.

         24                 MR. BAKER: In a hostile manner, will

         25  I be able to also convey to them the support of this
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          2  Committee for the increasing its financial

          3  commitments to the various programs under the MOA

          4  commensurate with the impact it is having --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I cannot speak

          6  to the entire Council, but I, for one, will support

          7  such programs with a legitimate reasonable need as

          8  shown. And I think it is important that we do

          9  everything that we can to support the upstate

         10  communities. And I hope that the upstate communities

         11  have the understanding of what we need in the City

         12  of New York as we intend to have for the upstate

         13  communities. Having spent much time upstate, going

         14  to school and otherwise, I am familiar with the

         15  areas and have a great feeling and deep feeling for

         16  the people in upstate New York, especially the

         17  watershed communities.

         18                 MR. BAKER: Mr. Chairman, I will take

         19  you up on that offer and I look forward to the

         20  opportunity of meeting with you and your staff to

         21  present a proposal which provides a more beneficial

         22  environmental benefit for water quality by providing

         23  additional funding for the underfunded programs.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I certainly

         25  would look forward to meeting with you and going
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          2  over that with you.

          3                 MR. BAKER: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you for

          5  coming.

          6                 Our next is Eric Goldstein, the

          7  Natural Resources Defense Council.

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman. My name is Eric Goldstein. I am an

         10  attorney with the Natural Resources Defense Council.

         11  I would like to speak briefly on two issues this

         12  morning.

         13                 First, regarding the wetlands

         14  resolution that the Committee has just voted out,

         15  NRDC strongly supports this resolution and we

         16  congratulate you and the other members of the

         17  Committee for advancing it and Speaker Vallone for

         18  his personal leadership on this issue too.

         19                 Sixty percent of the State's wetlands

         20  have already vanished. They have been destroyed by

         21  poor planning and unthoughtful development practices

         22  upstate New York.

         23                 These wetlands are the essential

         24  element in protecting an unfiltered drinking water

         25  supply, to capture pollutants, they serve as natural
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          2  filters and they are a primary line of defense, if

          3  one is trying to keep watershed and reservoirs

          4  clean.

          5                 This resolution is also consistent

          6  with federal law. This is not something that the

          7  Council is coming up with or the Army Corps of

          8  Engineers is coming up with.

          9                 Under section 404E of the Clean Water

         10  Act, nationwide permits may be issued by the Army

         11  Corps of Engineers only for those activities that

         12  will have minimal cumulative adverse effects on the

         13  environment, quote/unquote. And both New York City

         14  DEP and many others have determined that the

         15  continuing loss of wetlands in the upstate New York

         16  watershed would in fact have very serious adverse

         17  consequences for the protection of this water

         18  supply.

         19                 So, we believe that the Army Corps of

         20  Engineers not only has the authority to take this

         21  action, but it is obligated under federal law to

         22  issue permits, individual permits for projects that

         23  would dredge or fill wetlands in the sensitive and

         24  unique New York City watershed.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No matter the
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          2  size?

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: No matter the size.

          4                 And remember, this is a permit

          5  program. This is not a prohibition on the filling or

          6  dredging of wetlands, all it requires is that a

          7  permit be obtained and that mitigation measures be

          8  put in place before those activities could commence,

          9  and the overwhelming majority of permits that are

         10  requested from the Army Corps of Engineers are

         11  approved and those activities advanced, they advance

         12  however with appropriate mitigation measures to

         13  ensure that the wetlands and crucial watershed are

         14  protected, that is what this program would do. This

         15  program could make exceptions for environmentally

         16  necessary alterations and those are the kinds of

         17  activities that the region itself could adopt as it

         18  adopts the procedural implementation steps for

         19  advancing an individual permit program.

         20                 So, we share the desire that this not

         21  be added bureaucracy and there are ways in which the

         22  regional district office of the Army Corps of

         23  Engineers can ensure that activities that are

         24  necessary to advance environmentally sound

         25  alterations within the watershed can go for it and
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          2  we would hope that there would be plans for

          3  expedited permits proceedings as well.

          4                 Remember, we are not talking about

          5  hundreds or thousands of permits here, the Army

          6  Corps of Engineers predicted that there be somewhere

          7  between 40 or 60 or so permits, even if you go to

          8  the lowest level of protecting all watershed

          9  wetlands, we estimate probably no more than 60 or so

         10  permits a year that would be required under these

         11  provisions. In any event, certainly less than 100

         12  and that is an amount that certainly can be dealt

         13  with by the Army Corps of Engineers staff.

         14                 Finally, on the wetlands issue,

         15  please remember that DEP itself had recommended this

         16  and had urged that this be an essential piece of

         17  watershed protection, and if filtration avoidance

         18  was to be obtained on a continuing basis, DEP itself

         19  wrote in a series of letters earlier last year to

         20  the Army Corps of Engineers, there should be no

         21  individual permits, rather no nationwide permits for

         22  the watershed and the request should be on an

         23  individual basis and the Council Resolution today

         24  goes no further than the City DEP itself went

         25  earlier last year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They didn't

          3  limit theirs to a third of an acre either.

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: That is correct, they

          5  did not.

          6                 Turning for a moment to the land

          7  acquisition program, the other subject of today's

          8  hearings --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Before you get

         10  into that, I just wanted to, it was discussed with

         11  Mr. Baker's testimony, you believe that the period

         12  of time that would be required to process these

         13  permits cab be shortened?

         14                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Absolutely. There is

         15  no reason to think at least for some of the routine

         16  and the smallest projects that this would need to

         17  take 18 months. The Army Corps of Engineers has the

         18  authority to adopt special procedural conditions to

         19  expedite some of the permits for the smallest

         20  parcels or for parcels where there are

         21  environmentally necessary remediation projects, and

         22  since it is a relatively small number of projects

         23  that we are talking about, there is no reason to

         24  think that this would unduly delay the progress.

         25                 You often hear any time a permit
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          2  process or any kind of an environmental safeguard is

          3  discussed, the fears about concerns of added time,

          4  bureaucracy and cost.  Often times that is the

          5  truth, it is not the truth all the time, and of

          6  course we are talking about a trade-off here between

          7  protecting an unfiltered drinking water supply of 9

          8  million downstate New Yorkers and individual

          9  development on land parcels, and in some cases the

         10  public will takes a higher ranking in priority than

         11  the permit requirement would impose on individual

         12  land holders.

         13                 However, having said that, there is

         14  no reason why this permit process could not be an

         15  expeditious one, a fair one and particularly, since

         16  it does deal with the relatively small number of

         17  projects on an annual basis, we believe there is

         18  every reason to think that the procedures adopted by

         19  the Regional Office of the Army Corps of Engineers

         20  could satisfy the legitimate concerns of the upstate

         21  community and the overwhelming concerns of the 9

         22  million drinkers of the New York water supply.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you don't

         24  believe that one of the unintended consequences of

         25  passing our resolution, should it be followed by the
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          2  Army Corps of Engineers, would be to delay and

          3  implementation of any protective procedures, such as

          4  the upgrading of sewage treatment plants, or the

          5  banks in certain areas in the watershed area?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: There is absolutely no

          7  reason why that would happen. I can't see the

          8  connection between upgrading the sewage treatment

          9  plants and wetlands in any event, but there is no

         10  reason why advancing environmentally necessary

         11  projects would be unreasonably delayed as a result

         12  of this, and that is part of the reason why not only

         13  the City Council but the Westchester County Board of

         14  Legislators is about to vote out a resolution that

         15  is almost identical to the one being advanced by

         16  your committee today, why over a dozen new York City

         17  and Westchester Congress people have signed onto a

         18  letter urging the Army Corps to take exactly that

         19  same response and why a large group of New York

         20  State Senators and Assemblypersons have urged the

         21  Army Corps to take similar action, and finally, why

         22  we understand today both the United States Senators

         23  are also contacting the Army Corps of Engineers

         24  urging them to take exactly the same position you

         25  have taken today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, you don't

          3  believe the watershed community should regard this

          4  as a hostile act?

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: This is simply an

          6  added protection to ensure that New York City will

          7  have the time it needs to put in place a

          8  comprehensive watershed protection program. It is a

          9  key part of that, and for the upstate communities

         10  who are hoping to continue to receive financial

         11  assistance from New York City to rebuild their

         12  communities and the environmental facilities that

         13  are needed to protect the supply, this is a plus,

         14  because without wetlands protection it is much more

         15  likely that long-term filtration avoidance for the

         16  Catskill and Delaware system will go away, and

         17  without long-term filtration avoidance, much of the

         18  support through for upstate/downstate cooperative

         19  partnership that exists now, unfortunately could

         20  well peter out.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you.

         22  Now to go on to the next issue, the acquisition

         23  program.

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Let me speak briefly

         25  about this because NRDC has not performed a
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          2  comprehensive review of the City's land acquisition

          3  program.

          4                 On the positive side, our initial

          5  analysis of the most recent quarterly reports filed

          6  by the City's DEP on this issue, indicated that some

          7  progress is being made. Indeed, the land acquisition

          8  program is probably the strongest element of the

          9  watershed protection agreement reached by the City

         10  and state in 1997.

         11                 As we heard earlier today, progress

         12  is being made in purchasing the land and in

         13  establishing contracts for the purchase of land.

         14                 There is one critical exception and I

         15  would like to mention that briefly, and that

         16  involves the failure to purchase land or easements

         17  in the Kensico watershed.

         18                 Kensico is the single most important

         19  reservoir in the New York City drinking water

         20  supply. Ninety percent of the City's water flows

         21  through the Kensico Reservoir.

         22                 As NRDC indicated in a report we

         23  released several months ago, Under Attack, New York

         24  City's Kensico and West Branch Reservoirs, confront

         25  intensified development, the Kensico Reservoir is in
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          2  fact under attack from adverse, unplanned

          3  development.

          4                 This can have fatal consequences for

          5  long-term filtration avoidance in New York City.

          6                 NRDC found that there is widespread

          7  corporate development going on on parcels very close

          8  to the Kensico Reservoir. There are plans for

          9  highway and roadway expansions, including route 22

         10  and routes 120 right near the Kensico Reservoir,

         11  plans for Westchester Airport expansion continue to

         12  be discussed and advanced. There are two fabric

         13  curtains that are actually stretching over different

         14  portions of the Kensico Reservoir now. They are the

         15  last line of defense to prevent pollution from

         16  entering the water supply.

         17                 In other words, the Kensico Reservoir

         18  protection program includes, among its elements,

         19  fabric curtains that hold off pollution before the

         20  intake valve. That is how close the pollution

         21  problem is coming in the Kensico Reservoir.

         22                 In part, as a result of those

         23  problems, US EPA has already ordered Westchester

         24  County joint waterworks to filter its portion of the

         25  water that it takes from the Wry Lake portion of the
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          2  Kensico Reservoir.

          3                 In other words, the Kensico Reservoir

          4  is confronting problems so significant that EPA has

          5  already ordered Westchester water utilities to

          6  filter the water they take from the Rye Lake portion

          7  of the Kensico Reservoir.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Using what means

          9  of filtration?

         10                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Using the kind of

         11  filtration equipment that is being planned and is

         12  underway through the Croton system, meaning

         13  filtration equipment. And that debate, as to whether

         14  or not the joint waterworks in Westchester County

         15  will filter the Rye Lake portion of the Kensico

         16  Reservoir is an ongoing one, but there is an

         17  existing EPA order directing that that system be

         18  filtered.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What percentage

         20  of their water supply comes from the Rye?

         21                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Well, approximately 70

         22  percent of the water in Westchester County comes

         23  from the Kensico.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What percentage

         25  of the Kensico water comes from Rye Lake?
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          2                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I don't know the

          3  number to that but Rye Lake is the adjacent basin in

          4  the Kensico Reservoir, and if you would like we can

          5  pass around a map that indicate there are two basins

          6  in effect in Kensico, the main Kensico Reservoir and

          7  the Rye Lake portion.

          8                 New York City, fortunately in this

          9  case, gets its water from the other side, not the

         10  Rye Lake portion. But the reason this is the

         11  significant fact for you, Mr. Chairman, is it

         12  indicates how close the threat of filtration is

         13  coming if a portion of the Kensico Reservoir is now

         14  targeted by EPA for filtration for those systems in

         15  Westchester who are interested in using water from

         16  the Kensico Reservoir.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The water that

         18  comes from the threatened area that needs to be

         19  filtered only goes to Westchester?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDSTEIN: Yes, that

         21  is correct. That the intake for the Westchester

         22  system is in Rye Lake, the intake for the New York

         23  City water supply is on the other side of the

         24  Kensico Reservoir, so the threat is not immediate

         25  but it is a very telling sign and significantly New

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  York City DEP has established a fabric curtain on

          3  the Kensico side of the reservoir to protect run-off

          4  in a very developed area from getting into the New

          5  York City intake system. And similarly Westchester

          6  Joint Waterworks in Westchester County has developed

          7  or has installed its own curtain to protect runoff

          8  from the Westchester Airport in that area from

          9  getting in.

         10                 The point of this story means,

         11  threats of development in the Kensico Watershed are

         12  intensifying and now is the time to purchase land

         13  there and obtain easements before it is too late.

         14                 However, the results of the most

         15  recent submission by DEP to New York City, to USEPA

         16  indicate that not a single acre of land has been

         17  purchased in the Kensico Watershed by New York City

         18  yet. I will say that again. Not a single acre of

         19  land has been purchased in the Kensico basin by New

         20  York City. One acre, slightly less than an acre is

         21  under contract, but that is a woeful demonstration

         22  of the lack of judgment, it is a blob on the City's

         23  otherwise fine record in advancing watershed land

         24  acquisitions, and it will endanger long-term

         25  filtration avoidance.
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          2                 As far back as the early 1990s, the

          3  US Environmental Protection Agency indicated that

          4  protection of land in Kensico was absolutely

          5  critical, so that the first major initiative by

          6  USEPA on acquisition of land directed New York City

          7  to focus as a priority on the Kensico Reservoir.

          8  That was back in the early 1990s. To date, however,

          9  not an acre of land has been purchased in the

         10  Kensico watershed. And if we want to pay $5 billion

         11  or more to filter the Catskill and Delaware supply,

         12  let's tell DEP to continue to go slow in purchasing

         13  land and obtaining easements in the Kensico

         14  watershed. But if we want to achieve long-term

         15  filtration avoidance, we will send the message to

         16  DEP that while there are other efforts to advance

         17  land protection programs seem to be moving in the

         18  right direction, failure to obtain purchase of land

         19  or easements in the Kensico Watershed is something

         20  that needs to be reversed and reversed quickly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

         22  that this is a report that you issued?

         23                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that the

         25  agency, the Environmental Protection Agency has
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          2  responded to that.

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: But DEP has written

          4  some comments on the report, but no --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just one second,

          6  has responded to that, and you are evidently not

          7  satisfied with the response?

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: That's correct. We are

          9  not satisfied with the response, and they haven't

         10  reputed the major charge which we are making today,

         11  which is that not a single acre of land has been

         12  purchased in the Kensico watershed.

         13                 And if you look at the most recent, I

         14  believe it is the March 31, 1999 submission by New

         15  York City DEP to USEPA and you review the list of

         16  watershed parcels that have been purchased or that

         17  are under contract, you will see not a single acre

         18  of land in the Kensico watershed has been purchased

         19  and .95 acres, meaning less than one acre, is under

         20  contract, and that is a disgrace.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you know if

         22  there is any other negotiation going on with respect

         23  to any other acreage there?

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: For months and months

         25  and months we have been hearing about negotiations,
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          2  but it is now two years after the watershed

          3  agreement, five years after EPA first directed New

          4  York City to make Kensico a priority in the land

          5  protection program and it is time to say enough is

          6  enough. This is the single most important reservoir

          7  and it doesn't make much sense to protect land

          8  upstream if you are going to allow continued

          9  development around your most important reservoir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To say that I

         11  wish I had this to ask to the Commissioner when he

         12  was here, and I am interested in this issue, is an

         13  understatement. It is something that I really have

         14  to get a handle on and to learn more about.

         15                 As you know, the whole issue of the

         16  watershed, the wetlands is a huge, huge issue for us

         17  and is something that is really hard to get a handle

         18  on until you have actually concentrated on the

         19  individual issue. But I think this is an area which

         20  we have to pay a lot of attention to in the next

         21  couple of months.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: We thank you and we

         23  will be glad to help in any way we can.

         24                 Once again, we thank you and Speaker

         25  Vallone and the Committee for acting on wetlands
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          2  today. That is a very important step in what we all

          3  agree is an important process.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would like to

          5  get all of the information and hear what you have to

          6  say. You have peaked our interest.

          7                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: We would be happy to

          8  sit down at any time.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you, Council

         13  members.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mark Sullivan,

         15  Riverkeeper. Welcome Mr. Sullivan.

         16                 MR. SULLIVAN: Good morning, Chairman

         17  Michels. Thank you for having me this morning and

         18  for conducting these hearings. Your diligence is

         19  greatly appreciated. I want to touch briefly on the

         20  wetlands issue, the resolution which you passed this

         21  morning, and thank you for your attention to this

         22  issue over the past month and a half, and also thank

         23  the Speaker as well.

         24                 I just have a few quick comments. I

         25  would like to contradict some statements that were
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          2  made by Jeff Baker, Counsel to the Coalition of

          3  Watershed Towns.

          4                 First of all, it is not premature for

          5  the City Council to act on this issue and to pass

          6  this resolution, despite the continued negotiation

          7  over this issue before the Watershed Protection and

          8  Partnership Council.

          9                 Virtually every party to the

         10  Watershed Protection and Partnership Council, the

         11  WPPC, has taken a position on this issue already,

         12  and there is nothing that prohibits or forbids this

         13  Council from taking its own position, and you have

         14  taken the most advantageous and important position

         15  for the 9 million consumers of New York City water.

         16  Your constituents.

         17                 The Coalition has taken its own very

         18  strong position, as has the EPA and Riverkeeper and

         19  the environmental parties and now you have spoken.

         20  There is no reason and nothing that should hold you

         21  back from doing that.

         22                 It is also not premature in terms of

         23  the deliberations that the Corps of Engineers are

         24  taking right now. As you know, within weeks we

         25  expect to have a decision from the Corps and raising
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          2  your voice at this time is absolutely the

          3  appropriate thing to do.

          4                 I also want to stress basically who

          5  Riverkeeper represents. We represent and we assist a

          6  coalition of roughly 50 or 60 grassroots

          7  organizations within the watershed. There are many,

          8  many individuals and many small groups that attend,

          9  routinely attend town planning meetings and town

         10  board meetings to fight individual projects in the

         11  watershed that will adversely affect wetlands.

         12                 These are people who want to fight

         13  for their own back yards and there are thousands of

         14  them out there. They are loosely organized but they

         15  speak uniformly against wetlands destruction. And so

         16  that you should understand that there are people in

         17  the watershed who support you as well and support

         18  the greater protection of the wetlands.

         19                 Then I have three quick points I

         20  would like to make. The first is that, as you know,

         21  enhancing wetlands protection has for a long time

         22  been the New York City policy. The recent reversal

         23  by Commissioner Miele was a change in that policy.

         24                 Since 1997, when the DEP conducted

         25  its own wetlands survey in conjunction with the
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          2  United States Fish and Wildlife Survey, the City had

          3  stated that it had the desire to increasingly

          4  improve wetlands regulations of the watershed. And

          5  then this quarterly report which is a filtration

          6  avoidance deliverable to the Environmental

          7  Protection Agency was delivered on December 31st,

          8  1998 to the EPA, and also reiterates the fact that

          9  the City would like to see no nationwide permits in

         10  the watershed. And so this is not a recent trend.

         11  This is a long-standing City policy, and it was a

         12  movement in the correct direction until the

         13  Commissioner withdrew those comments in response to

         14  upstate political pressure.

         15                 The second point is that this policy

         16  is sound. As you have heard in the past, you have

         17  heard about Dr. Michael Clemmens, who is the

         18  foremost expert in the world on wetlands biology and

         19  wetlands functions. He lives in Westchester, he

         20  works in Westchester, he is very familiar with the

         21  watershed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is that the

         23  gentleman that Mr. Vallone took a trip with?

         24                 MR. SULLIVAN: That's right. And Dr.

         25  Clemmens took Speaker Vallone and a bunch of other
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          2  people out for basically an all-day seminar in the

          3  watershed and the great swamp up in Putnam County,

          4  and pointed out all of the various functions that

          5  these small wetland areas perform. You know, they

          6  are important for flood control and aquifer

          7  recharge. I mean, I don't need to go through the

          8  litany of functions that they provide, you have

          9  heard enough testimony on that fact, but it is the

         10  small wetland areas that are perhaps the most

         11  important. They are an absolute storehouse for

         12  biomass, including amphibians and bog turtles, and

         13  they are really the most crucial elements of

         14  watershed protection and environmental protection in

         15  general in the watershed.

         16                 So, the policy the City has embraced

         17  since 1997 is a strong one and a correct one.

         18                 The third point that I would like to

         19  raise is simply that the City really has no control

         20  and no ability to control the destruction of these

         21  smaller wetlands, and this is another point which

         22  you have heard testimony about and we understand

         23  fully. This is simply a result of the fact that the

         24  watershed regulations include within their

         25  definition of wetlands and watercourses the state
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          2  regulated wetlands definition which includes only

          3  wetlands greater than 12.4 acres, only the larger

          4  wetland areas.

          5                 And very often these vernal pools,

          6  these smaller wetlands, don't involve water courses,

          7  don't involve large streams that flow through them

          8  and are not regulated whatsoever by the City's

          9  program. They have no ability, the City DEP has no

         10  ability to control the destruction of those

         11  wetlands.

         12                 And we rely upon the Corps of

         13  Engineers and the individual permit program that the

         14  Corps has installed to control the destruction of

         15  those wetlands.

         16                 That is about it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Dr. Clemmens has

         18  convinced you of the importance of those small

         19  wetlands.

         20                 MR. SULLIVAN: Not just Dr. Clemmens,

         21  there is a body of research that indicates that

         22  those wetlands are the most important.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Any information

         24  that you have on that we would appreciate.

         25                 MR. SULLIVAN: We will provide what we
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          2  can to you, without question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you for

          4  coming and testifying.

          5                 MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Robert Gottheim

          7  from Congressman Nadler's Office.

          8                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman, and other members of the City Council

         10  Committee here on Environmental Protection.

         11                 I would like first apologize that

         12  Congressman Nadler cannot be here today to give this

         13  testimony himself. Congress is currently in session

         14  today, so he had to be down in Washington, so I

         15  would like to read the testimony that I have

         16  provided.

         17                 Thank you. I appreciate the

         18  information to testify before the Committee on

         19  Environmental Protection this morning.

         20                 Clean and safe drinking water is an

         21  invaluable resource that New Yorkers have been lucky

         22  enough to enjoy for generations. Now, however, the

         23  City's water supply faces what may be its greatest

         24  threat ever. I am leading the New York Congressional

         25  Delegation to ensure that the water the comes into
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          2  our homes which is used by ourselves and our

          3  families continues to be some of the greatest water

          4  in the world.

          5                 The future of New York City's

          6  drinking water depends on the actions of the United

          7  States Army Corps of Engineers. They are currently

          8  considering regulations which would effect

          9  protection for fragile wetlands in the New York City

         10  watershed.

         11                 I took the initiative in organizing

         12  13 of my New York City congressional delegation

         13  colleagues in writing a letter to Joseph J. Sebode,

         14  Chief of the Army Corps of Engineers New York

         15  District regulatory branch as some of the only

         16  elected public officials representing New York City

         17  and only New York City in the federal government. We

         18  spoke out in the strongest terms. Nearly 9 million

         19  residents of New York City and Westchester County

         20  receive their water from the City's irreplaceable 19

         21  upstate reservoirs. These reservoirs which supply

         22  roughly 1.3 gallons of water a date are replenished

         23  by rainwater and melting snow that falls onto the

         24  hilly terrain surrounding them and their

         25  tributaries.
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          2                 Wetlands perform an essential role in

          3  the water quality protection, removing sediments and

          4  breaking down pollution, they also slow erosion and

          5  act as sponges to soak up stormwater after rain and

          6  snowfall, capturing contaminants that would

          7  otherwise wash into the reservoir.

          8                 In recent years, however, these

          9  watershed lands have faced intensifying development

         10  pressures that pose significant risk to water

         11  quality. Although the risks are most severe in the

         12  nearby East of Hudson Watershed, the West of Hudson

         13  Catskill and Delaware system watershed are also

         14  facing long-term threats.

         15                 In fact, according to some sources

         16  there are at least two dozen development projects

         17  now in various states of design or construction on

         18  sensitive land in the vicinity of City reservoirs in

         19  Westchester and Putnam County.

         20                 We need to act now to safeguard water

         21  supplies for future generations. That means

         22  protecting its remaining wetlands from

         23  ill-considered development.

         24                 There are approximately 28,000 acres

         25  of wetlands left in New York City's 2,000 square
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          2  mile watershed. Just recently, a senior water

          3  official for the New York City Department of

          4  Environmental Protection stated that these wetlands

          5  perform an extremely important role in maintaining

          6  the high quality of water delivered to nearly

          7  one-half the population of New York State.

          8  Protecting them is a very high priority for New York

          9  City.

         10                 I am distressed that New York City

         11  has been inconsistent in its efforts to save our

         12  crucial watershed. The City's original proposal last

         13  summer was a step in the right direction on the

         14  environmental responsibility. It called upon the

         15  Army Corps of Engineers to safeguard these wetlands

         16  specifically to implement a much needed policy of

         17  requiring individual permit reviews before proven

         18  projects that would develop and thus alter watershed

         19  wetlands.

         20                 As we know, however, the City

         21  Department of Environmental Protection Commissioner

         22  recently withdrew this critical request. In our

         23  letter to the Army Corps of Engineers chief, the

         24  City's congressional delegation members and I urge

         25  that they adopt the City's original proposal, which
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          2  would put in place special requirements for permits

          3  to alter or develop wetlands in the watershed are

          4  issued. Such a move would not only protect the

          5  quality of the downstate water supply, it would also

          6  avoid the estimated $5 billion economic burden with

          7  which we will be saddled if New York City must build

          8  filtration facilities.

          9                 There are concerns from some upstate

         10  interests that such region specific permit

         11  conditions could unduly delay necessary local

         12  projects or activities involving small scale

         13  watershed parcels. These concerns are largely

         14  reasonable and indeed the Army Corps of Engineers

         15  should adopt sensible implementing procedures for

         16  the permit program. But they must not use these

         17  issues as an excuse to act irresponsibly first and

         18  foremost, the water supply of over 9 million New

         19  Yorkers must be protected.

         20                 According to the US Fish and Wildlife

         21  Service, 60 percent of New York State's wetlands

         22  have already been filled or otherwise altered. New

         23  York City's top drinking water officials recently

         24  stated, further loss or degradation of the remaining

         25  wetlands in the watershed may jeopardize regional
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          2  water quality. Therefore, I urge the Council to do

          3  everything in its power to protect the water use by

          4  my family and yours.

          5                 And I thank, Mr. Chairman, for

          6  approving the bill today or the resolution.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The resolution.

          8                 MR. GOTTHEIM: And I hope that the

          9  full City Council takes it up and approves it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Tell Congressman

         11  Nadler we appreciate you being here and your

         12  testimony and the work he is doing in congress on

         13  our behalf.

         14                 MR. GOTTHEIM: Thank you very much. I

         15  will convey that to him.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you.

         17                 Next we have Ann Warner Arlen.

         18                 Welcome. From Community Board 2 in

         19  Manhattan. Chair of the Environmental Committee, we

         20  always welcome you and we appreciate your being

         21  here.

         22                 MS. ARLEN: Thank you. Actually, we

         23  really appreciate your inviting us to testify today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just please

         25  identify yourself.
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          2                 MS. ARLEN: My name is Ann Arlen, I am

          3  chair of the Environment and Public Health Committee

          4  of Community Board 2 in Manhattan, which covers

          5  Greenwich Village, SoHo, the East Village.

          6                 We thank you very much for taking a

          7  leadership role on the protection of wetlands. We

          8  drink that water and we know that our citizens,

          9  their health very much depends upon the water being

         10  clean.

         11                 We also want to thank Alison Sachs,

         12  of your staff, for doing such a good job of making

         13  sure that we got here. She sent us the material we

         14  needed and she made sure that we were contacted.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We appreciate

         16  and are very proud of our staff.

         17                 MS. ARLEN: Well, she does a really

         18  good job, I was impressed.

         19                 A lot has been said today about the

         20  natural filtration function of wetlands. I would

         21  just like to add that we have no way to duplicate

         22  that. We are such a technological society that we

         23  think that we can create a technological fix that

         24  will make up for a failure to prevent pollution and

         25  a failure to protect natural filtration. That is not

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            116

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the case. The outbreaks of disease, water-borne

          3  disease, particularly cryptospiridosis, which just

          4  happened in this country, has happened in filtered

          5  systems and they happen because either there is a

          6  mechanical breakdown or there is a human error, and

          7  I mean it just doesn't happen that we have a perfect

          8  system and perfect human beings.

          9                 Now, when that happens in a system

         10  that traps pathogens, those pathogens are released

         11  all at once and they overwhelm immune systems which

         12  ordinarily might be able to stand up to the, let's

         13  say a normal load of pathogens.

         14                 Now, in any population we have people

         15  whose immune systems are compromised, typically

         16  people on immunosuppressants therapy, like radiation

         17  and chemotherapy, also people who are very young,

         18  very old, their immune systems are not as robust as

         19  people in their middle years, there are also people

         20  with diseases which compromise their immune systems,

         21  that includes HIV/AIDS. It is worth noting that even

         22  in community boards 2 and 4 which have high

         23  populations of people with HIV/AIDS, those

         24  populations are not as high as those of people on

         25  immuno-suppressant therapy, like radiation and
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          2  chemotherapy.

          3                 So the point I am making is that to

          4  the degree that we allow our wetlands to be degraded

          5  to the degree to which we fail to care for them, we

          6  put our populations at risk because, and that even

          7  when we filter, which will be the case in the Croton

          8  system, we actually create hazard by allowing the

          9  pollutants to be treated only by a mechanical

         10  filtration system, an artificial filtration system,

         11  rather than by protecting our natural filtration

         12  system.

         13                 So, bottom line is, our failure to

         14  care for our wetlands will be a failure to care for

         15  ourselves.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you. Give

         18  our regards to your wonderful community board.

         19                 MS. ARLEN: Thank you very much.

         20                 Frank Eadie from Board 4 says he will

         21  be back, he is down talking with somebody.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are going to

         23  resume the vote on the resolution, the 764-A, and to

         24  cast their vote I call upon the wonderful

         25  Councilwoman from the County of Kings, and the
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          2  Borough of Brooklyn, Tracy Boyland.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair. I do support this legislation. Thank you.

          5  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That makes the

          7  vote?

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Nine/zero. Nine

          9  in the affirmative.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is

         11  unanimously passed.

         12                 Next we have a Mr. Paul Mankiewicz.

         13                 Please state your name for the record

         14  and let's hear what you have to say.

         15                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: I am Paul Mankiewicz,

         16  I am the Executive Director of the GAIA Institute,

         17  and Vice President for the Bronx Council --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You will have to

         19  talk into the mic, you have to press the button.

         20                 Now let's hear you.

         21                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Paul Mankiewicz. I am

         22  the Executive Director of the GAIA institute, and

         23  Vice President of Bronx Council for Environmental

         24  Quality, as well as a member of the New York City

         25  Water Conservation District Board. I did much of my
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          2  doctoral work in the Croton and Catskill Delaware

          3  Watershed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

          5                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Just two very quick

          6  points. I brought some of this up in my April 15th

          7  testimony, but we have been in the act of protecting

          8  wetlands, but we must recognize that wetlands are

          9  coupled systems with the surrounding uplands, and on

         10  the issue of the scale of wetlands, you should

         11  recognize that wetlands are surrounded by forested

         12  communities and a wetland of about a tenth of an

         13  acre may have about the same size of connection with

         14  the surrounding forest buffer as a 12.4 acre

         15  wetland. So, in other words, the scale of wetlands

         16  that are protected is a critical issue because there

         17  is no protection for the small wetlands that have

         18  been virtually ignored in the framework of New York

         19  State protection all together.

         20                 One other point that almost travels

         21  as misinformation now with regard to wetlands is

         22  that while wetlands are very good at removing

         23  certain kinds of pollution, like nitrogen, they are

         24  very poor at removing phosphorus, carbon and to some

         25  degree pathogens. So, to just protect large wetlands
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          2  and not protect wetlands buffer systems, is

          3  essentially a disservice that will not protect water

          4  quality.

          5                 So, I basically will give you this

          6  color picture. It shows one wetland in a black and

          7  white, gray version, that is three times the size.

          8  The connection or the edge that actually joins those

          9  large or small wetland with the surrounding buffer

         10  is much, much larger. That is the surrounding

         11  biogeochemical filter is much, much larger in the

         12  small wetland compared to the larger wetland per

         13  area.

         14                 So, if you protect tenth of an acre

         15  wetlands, you may be doing the same kind of

         16  biogeochemical work as a 12 acre wetland. And that

         17  is a critical issue that has not been stated to the

         18  Council. I think your vote supports it, but you have

         19  to recognize that it is the biogeochemical capacity

         20  that will actually do the work of your legislation

         21  is designed to protect.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         24  much. We appreciate your testimony.

         25                 Mr. David Ferguson? He is not here.
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          2                 Jane Pearl? Not here.

          3                 Frank Eadie?

          4                 Karen Argenti?

          5                 Just identify yourself for the

          6  record, Karen.

          7                 MS. ARGENTI: Hi. My name is Karen

          8  Argenti. I just want to congratulate the Committee

          9  for its good vote on the resolution and thank you

         10  for holding the hearings. I never want to come to

         11  some place and not talk if I am given the

         12  opportunity.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are always

         14  delighted to hear from you.

         15                 Okay, are there any other witnesses?

         16  Anybody we haven't heard?

         17                 That being the case, the Committee is

         18  hereby adjourned. We are taking our agendas and

         19  adjourning.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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